VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP Form S-4/A August 12, 2005

Edgar Filing: VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP - Form S-4/A

Table of Contents

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 12, 2005 Registration No. 333-125521

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

Amendment No. 4 to Form S-4 **REGISTRATION STATEMENT** UNDER **THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933**

VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

PENNSYLVANIA

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

3845 (Primary Standard Industrial *Classification Code Number*)

3600 Horizon Drive King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 (484) 690-9000

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant s principal executive offices)

> Jerry L. Malis **President and Chief Executive Officer** Valley Forge Scientific Corp. **3600 Horizon Drive** King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 (484) 690-9000

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Copies to:

| Matthew H. Lubart, Esq. | Russell U. Schenkman, Esq. | Gregg D. Scheller President and | Robert E. Guest, Jr., Esq. | David W. Braswell, Esq. |
|----------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|
| John F. Cinque, Esq. | Schenkman, | Chief Executive | Doster Mickes | Armstrong |
| Fox Rothschild LLP | Jennings & | Officer | James Ullom | Teasdale LLP |
| 997 Lenox Drive, | Howard, LLC | Synergetics, Inc. | Benson & Guest | One Metropolitan |
| Building 3 | 13 Roszel Road | 3845 Corporate | LLC | Square |
| Lawrenceville, | Princeton, New | Centre Drive | 17107 Chesterfield | Suite 2600 |
| New Jersey | Jersey | O Fallon, Missouri | Airport Road | 211 North |
| 08648 | 08540 | 63368 | Suite 300 | Broadway |
| (609) 896-3600 | (609) 452-0110 | (636) 939-5100 | Chesterfield, | St. Louis, Missouri |
| | | | Missouri | 63102 |
| | | | 63005 | (314) 621-5070 |

23-2131580

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

(636) 532-0042

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after the effectiveness of this registration statement and the satisfaction of all other conditions under the merger agreement described herein.

If the securities being registered on this form are being offered in connection with the formation of a holding company and there is compliance with General Instruction G, check the following box. o

If this form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. o

If this form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. o

The registrant hereby amends this registration statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this registration statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the registration statement shall become effective on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to said Section 8(a), may determine.

, 2005

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED

, 2005

PROXY STATEMENT/PROSPECTUS OF VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP.

PROXY STATEMENT OF SYNERGETICS, INC.

Dear Shareholders:

We are pleased to report that the boards of directors of Valley Forge Scientific Corp. (Valley Forge) and Synergetics, Inc. (Synergetics) have approved a merger agreement which provides for the merger of a Valley Forge subsidiary into Synergetics. As a result of the proposed merger, Synergetics will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge. If we complete the proposed merger, the shareholders of Synergetics will become shareholders of Valley Forge and will receive shares of Valley Forge common stock in exchange for their existing Synergetics shares as provided for in the merger agreement. References to the merger agreement contained in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus shall be deemed to include the amendments thereto. More information about Valley Forge, Synergetics and the merger is contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. We encourage you to read carefully this joint proxy statement/prospectus, including the section entitled RISK FACTORS beginning on page 27, before voting on any matters to be submitted at the shareholders meetings.

Valley Forge s common stock is listed on the Boston Stock Exchange under the trading symbol VLF and is traded on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market under the trading symbol VLFG. On August 11, 2005, the last sale price of shares of Valley Forge s common stock on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market was \$4.22 per share.

In connection with the merger, Valley Forge is submitting a number of proposals to its shareholders to consider and vote upon, including a proposal to approve the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement and a proposal to amend and restate the articles of incorporation of Valley Forge as described below. Following the merger, Synergetics shareholders will own approximately 66% of the outstanding Valley Forge shares on a fully diluted basis. In addition, Valley Forge is calling and holding its 2005 annual meeting of shareholders. In connection with the annual meeting, Valley Forge is submitting a number of additional proposals to its shareholders to consider and vote upon that are typically presented at annual meetings of shareholders, including the election of directors and amendments to, and approval of, Valley Forge s stock option and directors plans. Valley Forge is also submitting a proposal to its shareholders to consider and vote upon the reincorporation of Valley Forge as a Delaware corporation. Throughout this joint proxy statement/ prospectus, we refer to this merger as the reincorporation merger. The approval of this proposal is a condition to the closing of the merger. Valley Forge is also submitting a proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to effect a reverse stock split of all shares of Valley Forge common stock at a ratio of not more than 1-for-2. The approval of the reverse stock split proposal is also a condition to the closing of the merger. Finally, Valley Forge is submitting a proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting to a later date, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposals submitted herein. The foregoing proposals are more fully described below and in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus.

After careful consideration, based upon the recommendation of its committee of independent directors, the Valley Forge board of directors approved and adopted the merger agreement, the merger and the other related matters contemplated in connection with the merger, including the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders. **The Valley Forge board of directors**

determined that the merger is in the best interests of Valley Forge shareholders and recommends that you vote

FOR the proposal to approve the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement.

After careful consideration, the Synergetics board of directors approved and adopted the merger agreement, the merger and the other related matters contemplated in connection with the merger. The Synergetics board of directors determined that the merger is in the best interests of Synergetics shareholders and recommends that you vote FOR the merger, the merger agreement and the other related matters.

Valley Forge and Synergetics cannot complete the merger unless the shareholders of Valley Forge approve the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders and a proposal to amend and restate the articles of incorporation of Valley Forge to (1) increase the number of authorized shares of Valley Forge common stock from 20,000,000 shares to 50,000,000 shares, (2) increase the number of directors on the Valley Forge board of directors to seven and (3) divide the Valley Forge board of directors into three classes, as nearly equal in size as practicable, with three-year staggered terms, and the shareholders of Synergetics approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement. The obligations of Valley Forge and Synergetics to complete the merger are also subject to the satisfaction or waiver of several other conditions to the merger.

In addition to the foregoing proposals, Valley Forge is submitting six additional proposals to its shareholders to consider and vote upon at the annual meeting. First, Valley Forge is proposing to reincorporate under the laws of the State of Delaware through a merger with a wholly-owned subsidiary established solely for such purpose. Valley Forge cannot complete the reincorporation merger without the approval of its shareholders, as more fully described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. Under the merger agreement, the completion of the reincorporation merger is required in order to complete the merger. If we complete the merger and the reincorporation merger, Valley Forge will be a Delaware corporation. If we complete the merger, but not the reincorporation merger, and the Synergetics board of directors waives this condition to the merger, the merger will proceed and Valley Forge will remain a Pennsylvania corporation. If approved by the Valley Forge shareholders, we expect to complete the reincorporation merger as promptly as practicable following consummation of the merger. For ease of reference, when we refer to Valley Forge throughout this joint proxy statement/prospectus, we are referring to Valley Forge Scientific Corp. as a Pennsylvania corporation. When we specifically refer to the Delaware successor to Valley Forge Scientific Corp. following the reincorporation merger, or the combined company generally, we will refer to New Synergetics. When we describe information unique to the combined company as a Pennsylvania corporation, in the case that the Valley Forge shareholders do not approve the reincorporation merger, we will refer to the combined company as New Synergetics-Pennsylvania.

Second, Valley Forge is proposing the election of seven directors to its board of directors, subject to the completion of the merger. Valley Forge s new Class A directors will hold office until the next annual meeting of New Synergetics shareholders, Valley Forge s new Class B directors will hold office until the annual meeting of New Synergetics shareholders in 2007 and Valley Forge s New Class C directors will hold office until the annual meeting of shareholders of Synergetics shareholders in 2008. Of the seven nominees for election to the board of directors of Valley Forge, Gregg D. Scheller, Kurt W. Gampp, Jr., Juanita H. Hinshaw and Larry C. Cardinale, if elected, will not join the board of Valley Forge until consummation of the merger. If the merger is not completed, Valley Forge will fill up to two vacancies on the board of directors in accordance with its governing documents and applicable law. Valley Forge has not yet selected the potential board members to fill any such vacancies.

Third, Valley Forge is proposing to amend the Valley Forge Scientific Corp. 2001 Stock Plan, also known as the Valley Forge stock plan, to increase the number of shares issuable upon exercise of options granted under the Valley Forge stock plan from 345,000 shares to 1,345,000 shares.

Fourth, Valley Forge is proposing to adopt the Valley Forge Scientific Corp. 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan, also known as the Valley Forge directors plan, to authorize the issuance of up to 200,000 shares of Valley Forge common stock issuable upon exercise of options granted under the Valley Forge directors plan.

Fifth, Valley Forge is proposing that its shareholders grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to effect a reverse stock split of all shares of Valley Forge common stock at a ratio of not more than 1-for-2. Nasdaq has notified Valley Forge that New Synergetics will be delisted if the closing bid price on the trading day following the consummation of the merger is below \$4.00 per share. The reverse stock split should have the effect of increasing the trading price in inverse proportion to the amount of the reverse split, thereby bringing the bid price into compliance with Nasdaq s bid price requirement. If the reverse stock split is necessary to maintain Valley Forge s listing on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market, Valley Forge will effect the reverse stock split as soon as reasonably practicable after the annual meeting, provided the Valley Forge shareholders approve this proposal. The Valley Forge board of directors does not intend to effect a reverse stock split unless it is necessary to maintain its listing on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market. The approval of this proposal by the Valley Forge shareholders is a condition to the consummation of the merger.

Sixth, Valley Forge is proposing that its shareholders grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting to a later date, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposals submitted herein. In that event, Valley Forge will ask its shareholders to vote only upon this proposal and not any of the other proposals submitted herein.

Based upon the recommendation of its committee of independent directors, the Valley Forge board of directors recommends that Valley Forge shareholders vote:

FOR the proposal to approve the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement;

FOR the proposal to amend and restate the articles of incorporation of Valley Forge;

FOR the proposal to approve the reincorporation merger;

FOR the proposal to elect the seven director nominees to Valley Forge s board of directors;

FOR the proposal to amend the Valley Forge stock plan;

FOR the proposal to adopt the Valley Forge directors plan;

FOR the proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to effect a reverse stock split at a ratio of not more than 1-for-2; and

FOR the proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting to a later date.

In connection with its special meeting, Synergetics is also proposing that its shareholders grant discretionary authority to the Synergetics board of directors to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposal to approve the merger agreement and the merger contemplated therein. In that event, Synergetics will ask its shareholders to vote upon this proposal and not the proposal to approve the merger agreement and merger contemplated therein.

The Synergetics board of directors recommends that you vote FOR the approval of the merger agreement and the merger contemplated therein and the proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Synergetics board of directors to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date.

The proposals are being presented to the Valley Forge shareholders at their annual meeting and to the Synergetics shareholders at a special meeting. The dates, times and places of the meetings are as follows:

For Valley Forge Shareholders:

For Synergetics Shareholders:

Monday, September 19, 2005, at 9:30 a.m., local time, at [Address]

Friday, September 16, 2005, at 5:30 p.m., local time, at the Doubletree Hotel and Conference Center 16625 Swingley Ridge Road Chesterfield, Missouri 63017

Your vote is very important. Whether or not you plan to attend your respective company s shareholders meeting, please take the time to vote by completing and mailing to your company the enclosed proxy card or, if the option is available to you, by granting your proxy electronically over the Internet or by telephone. If your shares are held in street name you must instruct your broker in order to vote. Sincerely,

Jerry L. Malis President and Chief Executive Officer Valley Forge Scientific Corp. Gregg D. Scheller President and Chief Executive Officer Synergetics, Inc.

None of the Securities and Exchange Commission, any state securities regulator or any regulatory authority has approved or disapproved of these transactions or the securities to be issued under this joint proxy statement/prospectus or determined if the disclosure in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is accurate or adequate. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

| This joint proxy statement/prospectus is dated [| |], 2005, and is being mailed to shareholders of Valley |
|--|----------|--|
| Forge and Synergetics on or about [|], 2005. | |

VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP. 3600 Horizon Drive King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON SEPTEMBER 19, 2005

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual meeting of shareholders of Valley Forge Scientific Corp., a Pennsylvania corporation (Valley Forge), will be held on Monday, September 19, 2005, at 9:30 a.m., local time, at [], located at []]. At the annual meeting, Valley Forge shareholders will consider and vote upon the following:

(1) A proposal to approve the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock in connection with the merger of Synergetics Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge (MergerSub), with Synergetics, Inc. (Synergetics) pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 2, 2005, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 2, 2005 and as further amended by Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated July 15, 2005, by and among Valley Forge, MergerSub and Synergetics. Pursuant to the merger agreement, MergerSub will be merged with and into Synergetics and Synergetics will thereby become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge;

(2) A proposal to amend and restate the articles of incorporation of Valley Forge, to:

- (i) increase the number of authorized shares of Valley Forge common stock from 20,000,000 shares to 50,000,000 shares;
- (ii) increase the number of directors on the Valley Forge board of directors to seven; and
- (iii) divide the Valley Forge board of directors into three classes, as nearly equal in size as practicable, with three-year staggered terms;

(3) A proposal to approve the reincorporation of Valley Forge under the laws of the State of Delaware through a merger of Valley Forge with VFSC Delaware, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge;

(4) A proposal to elect seven director nominees to the Valley Forge board of directors to serve until their respective successors are elected and qualified, or until the earlier of their death, resignation or removal;

(5) A proposal to amend the Valley Forge Scientific Corp. 2001 Stock Plan, also known as the Valley Forge stock plan, to increase the number of shares issuable upon exercise of options granted under the Valley Forge stock plan from 345,000 shares to 1,345,000 shares;

(6) A proposal to adopt the Valley Forge Scientific Corp. 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan, also known as the Valley Forge directors plan, to authorize the issuance of up to 200,000 shares of Valley Forge common stock issuable upon exercise of options granted under the Valley Forge directors plan;

(7) A proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to effect a reverse stock split of all shares of Valley Forge common stock at a ratio of not more than 1-for-2;

(8) A proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting to a later date, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposals submitted herein; and

(9) Such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting or any postponements or adjournments thereof.

The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the joint proxy statement/prospectus accompanying this notice of annual meeting of shareholders.

Only Valley Forge shareholders of record at the close of business on July 22, 2005 are entitled to notice of and to vote at the annual meeting and any postponements or adjournments thereof.

All Valley Forge shareholders are cordially invited to attend the annual meeting in person. However, to ensure representation at the annual meeting, Valley Forge shareholders are urged to mark, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card as promptly as possible in the postage-prepaid envelope enclosed for that purpose. Any Valley Forge shareholder attending the annual meeting may vote in person even if such shareholder previously returned a proxy card for the annual meeting by giving written notice to the Secretary of Valley Forge.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

Marguerite Ritchie Secretary

King of Prussia, Pennsylvania August 12, 2005

SYNERGETICS, INC. 3845 Corporate Centre Drive O Fallon, Missouri 63368 NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS TO BE HELD ON SEPTEMBER 16, 2005

To the Shareholders of Synergetics, Inc.:

A special meeting of the shareholders of Synergetics, Inc. (Synergetics) will be held at the Doubletree Hotel and Conference Center, located at 16625 Swingley Ridge Road, Chesterfield, Missouri 63017, on Friday, September 16, 2005, at 5:30 p.m., local time, to consider and vote upon the following:

(1) A proposal to approve the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 2, 2005, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 2, 2005 and as further amended by Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement as Plan of Merger dated July 15, 2005, by and among Valley Forge Scientific Corp. (Valley Forge), Synergetics Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge (MergerSub), and Synergetics, and the merger of MergerSub with and into Synergetics. As a result of the merger, Synergetics will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge and holders of Synergetics common stock will receive an aggregate of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock as more fully described in the accompanying joint proxy statement/prospectus;

(2) A proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Synergetics board of directors to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposal to approve the merger agreement and the merger contemplated therein; and

(3) Any other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

The record date for the special meeting is the close of business on August 9, 2005. Only Synergetics shareholders of record at that time are entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. To approve the merger agreement and the merger contemplated therein, the holders of at least two-thirds of all the outstanding shares of Synergetics common stock must vote in favor of the merger agreement and the merger.

The attached joint proxy statement/prospectus contains more detailed information regarding the merger and the merger agreement and includes a copy of the merger agreement.

Your vote is very important. Even if you expect to attend the special meeting, please complete, sign, and date the enclosed proxy card and return it promptly in the enclosed postage-paid envelope. If no instructions are indicated on your proxy card, your shares will be voted FOR the merger. If you do not return your proxy card or vote in person, the effect is a vote AGAINST the merger. You can revoke your proxy at any time before it is exercised by giving written notice to the secretary of Synergetics, or filing another proxy or attending the special meeting and voting in person.

If the merger agreement is approved and the merger is consummated, you will be sent a letter of transmittal with instructions for surrendering your certificates representing shares of Synergetics common stock. Please do not send your share certificates until you receive these materials.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,

Pamela G. Boone Secretary

O Fallon, Missouri August 12, 2005

HOW TO OBTAIN ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This joint proxy statement/prospectus incorporates important business and financial information about Valley Forge from other documents filed with the SEC that are not included in or delivered with this joint proxy statement/prospectus. For a list of the documents that Valley Forge has filed with the SEC and that have been incorporated into this joint proxy statement/prospectus, please see the section captioned WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION beginning on page 190 of this joint proxy statement/prospectus. These documents are available to you without charge upon your written or oral request. You can obtain the documents incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/prospectus by requesting them in writing or by telephone at the address and telephone below:

> Valley Forge Scientific Corp. 3600 Horizon Drive King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 Telephone: (484) 690-9000 Facsimile: (610) 272-8434 Attn: Investor Relations

To obtain documents in time for the annual meeting, your request must be received by September 12, 2005. IMPORTANT NOTE

In deciding how to vote on the matters described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, you should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus. Neither Valley Forge nor Synergetics has authorized any person to provide you with any information that is different from what is contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

The information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus speaks only as of the date indicated on the cover of this joint proxy statement/prospectus unless the information specifically indicates that another date applies.

In addition, if you have any questions about the matters described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, you may contact:

| Valley Forge Scientific Corp. | Synergetics, Inc. |
|-------------------------------------|--|
| 3600 Horizon Drive | 3845 Corporate Centre Drive |
| King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 | O Fallon, Missouri 63368 |
| Telephone: (484) 690-9000 | Telephone: (636) 939-5100 |
| Facsimile: (610) 272-8434 | Facsimile: (636) 939-6885 |
| Attn: Investor Relations | Attn: Pamela G. Boone, Chief Financial Officer |

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| OUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE PROPOSED MERGER | 1 |
|--|----|
| SUMMARY | 13 |
| The Companies | 13 |
| The Merger | 14 |
| Merger Consideration | 14 |
| Vote Required | 14 |
| Ownership of Valley Forge Following the Merger | 15 |
| Valley Forge Board of Directors after the Merger | 15 |
| Interests of Valley Forge Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger | 15 |
| Interests of Synergetics Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger | 15 |
| Material Federal Income Tax Consequences | 16 |
| Accounting Treatment | 16 |
| Regulatory Approvals | 16 |
| Dissenters Rights | 16 |
| Conditions to Completion of the Merger | 17 |
| Termination of the Merger Agreement | 17 |
| Break-Up Fee | 18 |
| Valley Forge Common Stock Is Freely Transferable by Non-Affiliates | 18 |
| Reasons for the Merger | 18 |
| Opinion of Valley Forge Financial Advisor | 18 |
| Recent Developments | 19 |
| Summary Selected Historical Financial Data of Valley Forge | 21 |
| Summary Selected Historical Financial Data of Synergetics | 22 |
| Selected Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Combined Financial Data | 23 |
| Comparative Per Share Data | 24 |
| Market Price and Dividend Information | 25 |
| SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS | 26 |
| <u>RISK FACTORS</u> | 27 |
| Risks Relating to the Merger | 27 |
| Risks Relating to the Business of the Combined Company | 30 |
| THE VALLEY FORGE ANNUAL MEETING | 38 |
| Date, Time and Place of the Valley Forge Annual Meeting | 38 |
| Purpose of the Annual Meeting | 38 |
| Record Date | 39 |
| Admission to the Annual Meeting | 39 |
| Quorum | 39 |
| Vote Required | 39 |
| Voting of Shares | 40 |
| How to Change a Vote or Revoke a Proxy | 41 |
| Voting Agreement | 41 |
| Solicitation of Proxies and Expenses Associated Therewith | 41 |

Page

| | Page |
|---|------|
| Recommendation of the Valley Forge Board of Directors | 41 |
| Assistance | 42 |
| THE SYNERGETICS SPECIAL MEETING | 43 |
| Date, Time and Place of the Synergetics Special Meeting | 43 |
| Purpose of the Special Meeting | 43 |
| Record Date | 43 |
| Admission to the Special Meeting | 43 |
| Quorum | 43 |
| Vote Required | 44 |
| Voting of Shares | 44 |
| How to Change a Vote or Revoke a Proxy | 45 |
| Voting Agreement | 45 |
| Solicitation of Proxies and Expenses Associated Therewith | 45 |
| Recommendation of the Synergetics Board of Directors | 45 |
| Assistance | 45 |
| VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 1 AND SYNERGETICS PROPOSAL 1 (THE MERGER) | 46 |
| THE MERGER | 46 |
| Background of the Merger | 46 |
| Joint Reasons for the Merger | 50 |
| Additional Valley Forge Reasons for the Merger | 51 |
| Opinion of Valley Forge Financial Advisor | 53 |
| Additional Synergetics Reasons for the Merger | 57 |
| Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger | 59 |
| Material Federal Income Tax Consequences | 61 |
| Accounting Treatment | 63 |
| Regulatory Approvals | 64 |
| Certain Securities Laws Considerations | 64 |
| Relationships between Valley Forge and Synergetics | 64 |
| <u>Dissenters Righ</u> ts | 64 |
| Exchange of Stock Certificates | 65 |
| Stock Ownership Following the Merger | 66 |
| TERMS OF THE MERGER AGREEMENT | 67 |
| General | 67 |
| Closing and Effective Time of the Merger | 67 |
| Treatment of Securities | 67 |
| Exchange of Stock Certificates | 69 |
| Lost, Mislaid, Stolen or Destroyed Certificates | 69 |
| Representations and Warranties | 69 |
| Conduct of Business Before Completion of the Merger | 70 |
| Valley Forge and Synergetics are Prohibited from Soliciting Other Offers | 72 |
| Obligations of Each of the Valley Forge and Synergetics Boards of Directors with Respect to its | |
| Recommendation and Holding a Meeting of its Shareholders | 72 |
| Public Announcements | 72 |
| Indemnification and Insurance | 73 |

| | Page |
|---|------|
| Valley Forge Board of Directors after the Merger | 73 |
| Reasonable Best Efforts to Complete the Merger | 73 |
| Additional Covenants of the Parties | 74 |
| <u>Conditions to Obligations to Complete the Merger</u> | 75 |
| Termination; Break-Up Fees; Expenses | 77 |
| Binding Arbitration | 78 |
| The Voting Agreements; Shareholders Agreement | 78 |
| UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | 81 |
| INFORMATION ABOUT SYNERGETICS | 91 |
| Overview | 91 |
| Combination with Valley Forge | 91 |
| Synergetics Products and Services | 92 |
| Manufacturing and Supplies | 93 |
| Marketing and Sales | 94 |
| Competition | 95 |
| Research and Development | 95 |
| Government Regulation | 96 |
| Patents and Intellectual Property | 97 |
| Product Liability Risk and Insurance Coverage | 98 |
| Employees | 98 |
| Properties | 98 |
| Legal Proceedings | 98 |
| Selected Financial Data | 99 |
| SYNERGETICS MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION | |
| AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS | 101 |
| Overview | 101 |
| Results of Operations | 102 |
| Liquidity and Capital Resources | 106 |
| Contractual Obligations | 107 |
| Post-Merger Liquidity Considerations | 108 |
| Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies | 108 |
| Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk | 110 |
| INFORMATION ABOUT VALLEY FORGE | 111 |
| Overview | 111 |
| <u>Strategy</u> | 112 |
| Valley Forge Technology | 112 |
| Electrosurgery | 113 |
| The Neurosurgery Market | 114 |
| The Dental Market | 116 |
| Manufacturing and Supplies | 117 |
| Marketing and Sales | 118 |
| Competition | 119 |
| Research and Development Strategy | 120 |
| Government Regulation | 120 |

| | Page |
|--|------|
| Patents and Intellectual Property | 122 |
| Product Liability Risk and Insurance Coverage | 123 |
| Employees | 123 |
| Properties | 123 |
| Legal Proceedings | 123 |
| Selected Financial Data | 124 |
| VALLEY FORGE MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION | 121 |
| AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS | 125 |
| Overview | 125 |
| Results of Operations | 126 |
| Liquidity and Capital Resources | 130 |
| Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies | 132 |
| Financial Statements and Supplementary Data | 133 |
| Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure | 134 |
| MARKET PRICE AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION | 135 |
| VALLEY FORGE PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS | 136 |
| SYNERGETICS PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS | 139 |
| DESCRIPTION OF VALLEY FORGE CAPITAL STOCK | 141 |
| Common Stock | 141 |
| Preferred Stock | 141 |
| Anti-Takeover Effects of Provisions of Valley Forge Organizational Documents and | |
| Pennsylvania Law | 141 |
| Transfer Agent | 142 |
| COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF HOLDERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS | 143 |
| ADDITIONAL VALLEY FORGE PROPOSALS | 156 |
| VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 2 AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION | |
| OF VALLEY FORGE | 156 |
| Vote Required | 157 |
| VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 3 REINCORPORATION OF VALLEY FORGE FROM | |
| PENNSYLVANIA INTO DELAWARE (THE REINCORPORATION MERGER) | 158 |
| General | 158 |
| Proposal | 158 |
| Principal Reasons for the Reincorporation Merger | 159 |
| No Change in the Business of Valley Forge | 160 |
| Material Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Reincorporation Merger | 160 |
| Vote Required | 161 |
| VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 4 ELECTION OF THE VALLEY FORGE DIRECTORS | 162 |
| Nominees | 162 |
| The Board Meetings and Committees | 163 |
| Directors Compensation | 164 |
| Director Nominations | 164 |
| Communications with the Board of Directors | 166 |
| | |

| VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 5 APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT TO VALLEY FORGE STOCK | |
|---|-----|
| PLAN | 168 |
| Administration | 168 |
| Eligibility | 168 |
| Number of Shares Subject to the Valley Forge Stock Plan | 168 |
| Federal Income Tax Consequences | 169 |
| Amendment and Termination | 170 |
| Change of Control | 170 |
| Vote Required | 170 |
| VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 6 APPROVAL TO ADOPT VALLEY FORGE DIRECTORS PLAN | 171 |
| Administration | 171 |
| Eligibility | 171 |
| Number of Shares Subject to the Valley Forge Directors Plan | 171 |
| Stock Option Grants | 171 |
| New Plan Benefits | 172 |
| Amendment and Termination | 172 |
| Vote Required | 173 |
| VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 7 BOARD DISCRETION TO EFFECT REVERSE STOCK SPLIT | 174 |
| Overview | 174 |
| Purposes of the Proposed Reverse Stock Split | 174 |
| Listing on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market | 174 |
| Potential Effects of the Proposed Reverse Stock Split | 175 |
| Effects on Ownership by Individual Shareholders | 176 |
| Effect on Options, Warrants and Other Securities | 176 |
| Other Effects on Shares of Valley Forge Common Stock | 176 |
| Authorized Shares of Valley Forge Common Stock | 177 |
| Procedure for Effecting the Proposed Reverse Stock Split and Exchange of Stock Certificates | 177 |
| Fractional Shares | 178 |
| Appraisal Rights | 178 |
| Accounting Consequences | 178 |
| Material Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Reverse Stock Split | 178 |
| Vote Required | 179 |
| VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 8 GRANT OF DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY TO THE VALLEY | |
| FORGE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO ADJOURN OR POSTPONE THE ANNUAL MEETING TO A | |
| LATER DATE | 180 |
| Vote Required | 180 |
| ADDITIONAL SYNERGETICS PROPOSAL | 181 |
| SYNERGETICS PROPOSAL 2 GRANT OF DISCRETIONARY AUTHORITY TO THE | |
| SYNERGETICS BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO ADJOURN OR POSTPONE THE SPECIAL MEETING | 181 |
| Vote Required | 181 |
| | |

Page

| | Page |
|--|------|
| EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF VALLEY FORGE | 182 |
| EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF NEW SYNERGETICS | 182 |
| EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER MATTERS | 183 |
| EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION | 184 |
| COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION | 184 |
| CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS | 184 |
| SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE | 185 |
| CODE OF ETHICS | 185 |
| REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE | 185 |
| REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE | 187 |
| INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM | 187 |
| OTHER MATTERS | 188 |
| SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS TO BE PRESENTED AT NEXT ANNUAL MEETING | 188 |
| FORM 10-K ANNUAL REPORT | 189 |
| HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY MATERIALS | 189 |
| LEGAL MATTERS | 189 |
| EXPERTS | 190 |
| WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION | 190 |
| INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE | 190 |
| INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SYNERGETICS | F-1 |
| INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VALLEY FORGE | F-26 |
| Opinion and Consent of Armstrong Teasdale LLP - Tax Matters | |
| Opinion and Consent of Fox Rothschild LLP - Tax Matters | |
| Consent of Samuel Klein and Company (Valley Forge) | |
| Consent of McGladrey and Pullen, LLP (Synergetics) | |
| Consent of MPP&W, PC (Synergetics) | |
| Consent of Wildwood Capital LLC | |

vi

ANNEXES

- Annex A Agreement and Plan of Merger, as amended
- Annex B Proposed Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Valley Forge
- Annex C Valley Forge Scientific Corp. 2001 Stock Plan
- Annex D Valley Forge Scientific Corp. 2005 Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan
- Annex E Fairness Opinion of Wildwood Capital LLC
- Annex F Section 351.455 of The General and Business Corporation Law of Missouri
- Annex G Agreement and Plan of Reincorporation Merger
- Annex H Proposed Certificate of Incorporation of Synergetics, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation)
- Annex I Proposed Bylaws of Synergetics, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation)
- Annex J Proposed Articles of Amendment to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Valley Forge vii

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE PROPOSED MERGER

The following are some questions that you, as a shareholder of Valley Forge or Synergetics, may have regarding the merger and the other matters being considered at the respective shareholder meetings of Valley Forge and Synergetics and brief answers to those questions. Valley Forge and Synergetics urge you to read carefully the remainder of this joint proxy statement/prospectus because the information in this section does not provide all the information that might be important to you with respect to the merger and the other matters being considered at their respective shareholders meetings. One of the matters being presented at the Valley Forge annual meeting of shareholders is a proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to effect a reverse stock split of the shares of Valley Forge common stock. References in this joint proxy statement/prospectus to the merger consideration do not take into account the reverse stock split unless otherwise specified. Additional important information is also contained in the annexes to and the documents incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Q. Why am I receiving this joint proxy statement/prospectus?

A. On May 2, 2005, Valley Forge and Synergetics entered into a merger agreement under which Synergetics will merge with a newly formed subsidiary of Valley Forge and thereby become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge. A copy of the merger agreement, as amended, is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex A. The merger has received all requisite corporate approvals of the boards of Valley Forge and Synergetics, and is expected to be completed on September 19, 2005 or as soon thereafter as practicable. If we complete the merger, Valley Forge will issue an aggregate of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders, other than those Synergetics shareholders who have properly exercised their dissenters rights. Valley Forge and Synergetics cannot complete the merger unless Valley Forge shareholders approve the issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock in the merger and the Synergetics shareholders adopt and approve the merger agreement, the merger, and the other matters contemplated in the merger agreement. The Valley Forge board of directors is soliciting your proxy to vote FOR the Valley Forge proposal to approve the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock to the Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement. The Synergetics board of directors is soliciting your proxy to vote FOR the Synergetics proposal to adopt and approve the merger agreement, the merger and the other matters contemplated in the merger agreement. This joint proxy statement/prospectus describes Valley Forge, Synergetics and the merger so that you may make an informed decision with respect to this merger proposal.

In addition, Valley Forge and Synergetics cannot complete the merger unless Valley Forge shareholders approve the proposal to amend and restate the articles of incorporation of Valley Forge to (1) increase the number of authorized shares of Valley Forge common stock from 20,000,000 shares to 50,000,000 shares, (2) increase the number of directors on the Valley Forge board of directors to seven and (3) divide the Valley Forge board of directors into three classes, as nearly equal in size as practicable, with three-year staggered terms. Valley Forge cannot amend and restate its articles of incorporation without the approval of its shareholders, as more fully described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Valley Forge is also taking this opportunity to call and hold its 2005 annual meeting of shareholders. At the annual meeting, Valley Forge is submitting six additional proposals for the consideration and approval of its shareholders.

First, Valley Forge is proposing to reincorporate under the laws of the State of Delaware through a merger with a wholly-owned subsidiary established solely for such purpose. Valley Forge cannot complete the reincorporation merger without the approval of its shareholders, as more fully described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. Under the terms of the merger agreement, the reincorporation of Valley Forge is required to complete the merger. If Valley Forge shareholders approve the issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement, but not the reincorporation merger, the Synergetics board of directors must waive this condition in order for the merger to proceed, in which case Valley Forge will remain a

Pennsylvania corporation.

Second, Valley Forge is proposing the election of seven directors to its board of directors. Valley Forge s new Class A directors will hold office until the next annual meeting of New Synergetics shareholders, Valley Forge s new Class B directors will hold office until the annual meeting of New Synergetics shareholders in 2007, and Valley Forge s new Class C directors will hold office until the annual meeting of New Synergetics shareholders in 2008. Of the seven nominees for election to the board of directors of Valley Forge, Gregg D. Scheller, Kurt W. Gampp, Jr., Juanita H. Hinshaw and Larry C. Cardinale, if elected, will not join the board of Valley Forge until consummation of the merger. If the merger is not completed, Valley Forge will fill up to two vacancies on the board of directors in accordance with its governing documents and applicable law.

Third, Valley Forge is proposing to amend the Valley Forge stock plan to increase the number of shares issuable upon exercise of options granted under the Valley Forge stock plan from 345,000 shares to 1,345,000 shares.

Fourth, Valley Forge is proposing to adopt the Valley Forge directors plan to authorize the issuance of up to 200,000 shares of Valley Forge common stock issuable upon exercise of options granted under the Valley Forge directors plan.

Fifth, Valley Forge is proposing that its shareholders grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to effect a reverse stock split of all shares of Valley Forge common stock at a ratio of not more than 1-for-2. Nasdaq has notified Valley Forge that New Synergetics will be delisted if the closing bid price on the trading day following the consummation of the merger is below \$4.00 per share. The reverse stock split should have the effect of increasing the trading price in inverse proportion to the amount of the reverse split, thereby bringing the bid price into compliance with Nasdaq s bid price requirement. If the reverse stock split is necessary to maintain Valley Forge s listing on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market, Valley Forge will effect the reverse stock split as soon as reasonably practicable after the annual meeting, provided the Valley Forge shareholders approve this proposal. The Valley Forge board of directors does not intend to effect a reverse stock split unless it is necessary to maintain its listing on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market. The approval of this proposal by the Valley Forge shareholders approve the shareholders is a condition to the consummation of the merger.

Sixth, Valley Forge is proposing that its shareholders grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting to a later date, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposals submitted herein.

Q. Why are Valley Forge and Synergetics proposing the merger?

A. The boards of directors of Valley Forge and Synergetics believe that by combining the complementary, non-overlapping product lines and distribution networks of the two companies, New Synergetics can generate improved long-term operating and financial results and establish a stronger competitive position in the industry. The boards further believe that the combination of Synergetics unique capabilities in design and manufacture of microsurgical hand instruments and Valley Forge s unique capabilities in bipolar electrosurgical generators will provide New Synergetics with the ability to broaden the markets for products of both entities and increase the penetration in existing markets. To review the reasons for the merger as well as the negative factors considered by the Valley Forge and Synergetics boards of directors in greater detail, see THE MERGER Joint Reasons for the Merger beginning on page 50, THE MERGER Additional Valley Forge Reasons for the Merger beginning on page 57. We encourage you to read this joint proxy statement/prospectus carefully, including the section entitled RISK FACTORS beginning on page 27, for a discussion of risks associated with the merger and New Synergetics.

Q. What will happen in the merger?

- A. In the merger, Synergetics Acquisition Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge, will merge with Synergetics, with Synergetics surviving as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge.
- Q. What will Synergetics shareholders be entitled to receive pursuant to the merger?
- A. Upon completion of the merger, Synergetics shareholders will receive an aggregate of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock. Synergetics shareholders will receive cash in lieu of any fractional shares of Valley Forge common stock that would otherwise be issued pursuant to the merger. Upon consummation of the merger, Synergetics shareholders would own approximately 66% of Valley Forge s common stock on a fully diluted basis immediately after the proposed merger.

Until the completion of the merger, the trading price of Valley Forge common stock could fluctuate. Because Synergetics shareholders will receive a fixed number of shares of Valley Forge common stock in the merger, the value of Valley Forge common stock they will receive could fluctuate as well. Therefore, Synergetics shareholders will not know the precise overall economic value of the merger consideration they will receive until the closing date of the merger.

Q. How will Synergetics shareholders be affected by the merger?

A. If the merger is completed, Synergetics shareholders will receive an aggregate of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock and will own approximately 66% of the fully diluted shares of common stock of the combined company immediately after the merger. Synergetics contribution to the combined company s earnings as a percent of total pro forma earnings giving effect to the merger is significantly greater than its percentage ownership of the combined company. The impact of this dilution to Synergetics shareholders following completion of the merger will depend partially on whether the combined company will be able to increase earnings to make up for this dilution.

Q. Why is Valley Forge proposing the reverse stock split?

- A. The Nasdaq Stock Market has advised Valley Forge that it considers the merger to be a Reverse Merger under Nasdaq s Marketplace Rules. Based on this conclusion, Nasdaq has advised Valley Forge that upon consummation of the merger, New Synergetics will be required to meet all of the criteria for initial listing on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market, including a closing bid price of \$4.00 per share. Nasdaq has notified Valley Forge that New Synergetics will be delisted if the closing bid price on the trading day following the consummation of the merger is below \$4.00 per share. Valley Forge is requesting the Valley Forge shareholders to grant authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to approve the reverse stock split so that, if necessary, Valley Forge can comply with the minimum bid price rules for initial listing on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market. The reverse stock split should have the effect of increasing the trading price in inverse proportion to the amount of the reverse split, thereby bringing the bid price into compliance with Nasdaq s bid price requirement. On August 11, 2005, the closing bid price for Valley Forge common stock was \$4.22 per share on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market.
- **Q.** What effect will the reverse stock split have on the consideration to be received by Synergetics shareholders in the merger?
- A. If necessary to maintain the listing of shares of Valley Forge common stock on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market, Valley Forge may effect the reverse stock split before consummation of the merger, in which case the closing of the merger may be delayed for a brief period of time following the shareholder meeting for this purpose. If the reverse stock split is effected before consummation of the merger, the number of Valley Forge shares issued to Synergetics shareholders will be proportionately adjusted. If the reverse stock split is effected after the closing of the merger, Synergetics shareholders will receive the merger consideration without adjustment, but shortly thereafter, upon the effectiveness of the reverse stock split, such shareholders, together with all other

shareholders of New Synergetics, including the existing Valley Forge shareholders, will have their total number of shares proportionately adjusted. Regardless of the ratio of the reverse stock split and the corresponding adjustment to the number of shares of Valley Forge common stock to be issued pursuant to the merger, upon consummation of the merger, Synergetics shareholders will own approximately 66% of the outstanding shares of Valley Forge common stock on a fully diluted basis.

Q. How will the ratio and timing of the reverse stock split be determined?

- A. The ratio and timing of the reverse stock split will be determined by agreement of Synergetics and Valley Forge following the Valley Forge shareholders meeting. The Valley Forge board of directors does not intend to effect a reverse stock split unless it is necessary to maintain its listing on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market. For a more complete description of the proposed reverse stock split, see VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 7 BOARD DISCRETION TO EFFECT REVERSE STOCK SPLIT beginning at page 174.
- **Q.** Will Synergetics shareholders be able to trade the Valley Forge common stock that they receive pursuant to the merger agreement?
- A. Yes. Valley Forge common stock is listed on the Boston Stock Exchange under the trading symbol VLF and traded on the over-the-counter market on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market under the trading symbol VLFG. Upon consummation of the merger, New Synergetics is expected to be traded on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market under the trading symbol SURG, but Valley Forge and Synergetics do not expect to continue the listing of New Synergetics shares on the Boston Stock Exchange following the merger. Pending approval of the Nasdaq initial listing application, all shares of Valley Forge common stock that Synergetics shareholders receive pursuant to the merger will be freely transferable unless a shareholder is deemed an affiliate of Synergetics, you will be required to comply with the applicable restrictions of Rule 145 under the Securities Act of 1933 (Securities Act) in order to resell the Valley Forge common stock you receive in the merger. In addition, certain affiliates of Valley Forge and Synergetics will be subject to certain contractual transfer restrictions pursuant to a shareholders agreement to be entered into among such affiliates and New Synergetics.

Q. How will Valley Forge shareholders be affected by the merger and issuance of Valley Forge common stock in the merger?

A. After the merger, Valley Forge shareholders will continue to own their existing shares of Valley Forge common stock. Accordingly, Valley Forge shareholders will hold the same number of shares of Valley Forge common stock that they held immediately before the merger without giving effect to the proposed reverse stock split. However, because Valley Forge will be issuing new shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders in the merger, each outstanding share of Valley Forge common stock immediately before the merger. Valley Forge of the total number of shares of Valley Forge common stock outstanding after the merger. Valley Forge shareholders before the merger will hold approximately 34% of the fully diluted shares of Valley Forge common stock immediately following the merger.

Q. When is the merger expected to be completed?

A. We expect that the merger will be completed on September 19, 2005 or as soon thereafter as practicable. The completion of the merger is subject to closing conditions and approvals described in the merger agreement.



Q. What are Valley Forge shareholders voting on?

A. Valley Forge shareholders are voting on a proposal to approve the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement. Approval of this proposal by the Valley Forge shareholders is a condition of the effectiveness of the merger.

Valley Forge shareholders are also voting on a proposal to amend and restate the articles of incorporation of Valley Forge to (1) increase the number of authorized shares of Valley Forge common stock from 20,000,000 shares to 50,000,000 shares, (2) increase the number of directors on the Valley Forge board of directors to seven and (3) divide the Valley Forge board of directors into three classes, as nearly equal in size as practicable, with three-year staggered terms. **Approval of this proposal is a condition to the effectiveness of the merger.** A copy of the proposed articles of incorporation is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex B.

In addition, Valley Forge shareholders are voting on a proposal to approve the reincorporation of Valley Forge under the laws of the State of Delaware through a merger of Valley Forge and VFSC Delaware, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge. **Approval of this proposal is a condition to the effectiveness of the merger, but is waivable by the Synergetics board of directors.** Under the terms of the merger agreement, the reincorporation of Valley Forge is required to complete the merger. If shareholders approve the merger, but not the reincorporation merger, the Synergetics board of directors must waive this condition in order for the merger to proceed, in which case Valley Forge will remain a Pennsylvania corporation.

Valley Forge shareholders are also voting on a proposal to elect the seven director nominees to the Valley Forge board of directors to serve until their respective successors are elected and qualified, or until the earlier of their death, resignation or removal. **Approval of this proposal is a condition to the effectiveness of the merger.**

Valley Forge shareholders are also voting on a proposal to amend the Valley Forge stock plan to increase the number of shares issuable upon exercise of options granted under the Valley Forge stock plan from 345,000 shares to 1,345,000 shares. A copy of the Valley Forge stock plan is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex C.

Valley Forge shareholders are also voting on a proposal to adopt the Valley Forge directors plan to authorize the issuance of up to 200,000 shares of Valley Forge common stock issuable upon exercise of options granted under the Valley Forge directors plan. A copy of the Valley Forge directors plan is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex D.

Valley Forge shareholders are also voting on a proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to effect a reverse stock split of all shares of Valley Forge common stock at a ratio of not more than 1-for-2. **Approval of this proposal is a condition to the effectiveness of the merger.** A copy of the proposed articles of amendment is attached to this joint proxy statement/ prospectus as Annex J.

Valley Forge shareholders are also voting on a proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting to a later date, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposals submitted herein.

Q: What vote of Valley Forge shareholders is required to approve the foregoing proposals?

A: Each of the proposals to (1) approve the issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement, (2) amend and restate the articles of incorporation of Valley Forge, (3) approve the reincorporation merger, (4) amend the Valley Forge stock plan, (5) adopt the Valley Forge directors plan, (6) grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to effect a reverse stock split of all shares of Valley Forge common stock at a ratio of not more than 1-for-2 and (7) grant discretionary authority to the Valley

Forge board of directors to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting to a later date requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of Valley Forge common stock represented and voting at the annual meeting, provided a quorum is present. A quorum is established by the presence of holders, in person or by proxy, of a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Valley Forge common stock entitled to vote at the annual meeting.

The seven nominees receiving the highest number of votes will be elected as directors of Valley Forge.

Q: How does the Valley Forge Board of Directors recommend that Valley Forge shareholders vote?

A: Based upon the recommendation of its independent committee of directors, the Valley Forge board of directors believes that the merger is advisable, and fair to and in the best interests of Valley Forge and its shareholders and recommends that Valley Forge shareholders vote FOR the proposal to issue the shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement.

The Valley Forge board of directors also recommends that Valley Forge shareholders vote FOR the proposal to amend and restate the Valley Forge articles of incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of Valley Forge common stock, increase the number of directors on the Valley Forge board of directors to seven and divide the Valley Forge board of directors into three classes, as nearly equal in size as practicable, with three-year staggered terms, FOR the proposal to approve the reincorporation of Valley Forge under the laws of the State of Delaware, FOR the proposal to elect the seven director nominees to the Valley Forge board of directors, FOR the proposal to anend the Valley Forge stock plan to increase the number of shares issuable under the Valley Forge stock plan to 1,345,000 shares, FOR the proposal to adopt the Valley Forge directors plan to authorize the issuance of up to 200,000 shares of Valley Forge common stock issuable upon exercise of the options granted under the Valley Forge directors plan, FOR the proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Valley Forge board of directors to adjourn or postpone the annual meeting to a later date.

For a more complete description of the recommendations of the Valley Forge board of directors, see THE VALLEY FORGE ANNUAL MEETING Recommendation of the Valley Forge Board of Directors beginning at page 41.

Q: How do the Valley Forge directors and executive officers intend to vote on the merger?

A: Certain of the Valley Forge directors, executive officers and greater than 5% shareholders have entered into a voting agreement with Valley Forge and Synergetics pursuant to which they have agreed to vote all of their respective shares of Valley Forge common stock in favor of Valley Forge s proposal to approve the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock as contemplated by the merger agreement. At the close of business on May 2, 2005, the date of the merger agreement, such directors, executive officers and greater than 5% shareholders of Valley Forge and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote 2,694,893 shares of Valley Forge common stock, collectively representing approximately 34% of the shares of Valley Forge and their 5% shareholders of Valley Forge and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote 2,694,893 shares of Valley Forge and their affiliates of Valley Forge and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote 2,694,893 shares of Valley Forge common stock, collectively Forge common stock, collectively representing approximately 34% of the shares of Valley Forge common stock outstanding on that date.

6

Q: Do any of the Valley Forge directors and executive officers have any special interests in the merger?

A: In considering the recommendation of the Valley Forge board of directors with respect to the issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock in the merger, you should be aware that members of the Valley Forge board of directors and Valley Forge executive officers have interests in the merger that may be different than, or in addition to, the interests of Valley Forge shareholders generally. These interests include:

the appointment of two current directors of Valley Forge as directors of New Synergetics upon completion of the merger, and the appointment of Jerry L. Malis of Valley Forge as an executive officer of New Synergetics upon completion of the merger;

the execution of a three-year employment agreement between Jerry L. Malis and New Synergetics, providing for, among other things, the receipt of severance payments if Mr. Malis were to be terminated without cause by New Synergetics or if he were to resign for good reason;

a payment of \$4,157,504 payable over approximately six years to Dr. Leonard I. Malis upon the exercise of an option previously granted to Valley Forge to purchase the Malis® trademark, which payment will be evidenced by a promissory note secured by a security interest in the trademark and certain patents; and

the continued indemnification of, and provision of directors and officers insurance coverage to, current directors and officers of Valley Forge following the merger.

The Valley Forge board of directors was aware of these interests and considered them, among other matters, in making its recommendation that the Valley Forge shareholders approve the issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement and the other proposals submitted herein.

Q: What are Synergetics shareholders voting on?

A: Synergetics shareholders are voting on a proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement. Approval of this proposal by Synergetics shareholders is a condition to the effectiveness of the merger.

Synergetics shareholders are also voting on a proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Synergetics board of directors to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are not sufficient votes in favor of the proposal to approve the merger agreement and the merger contemplated therein.

- **Q:** What vote of Synergetics shareholders is required to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement?
- A: The affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of the issued and outstanding shares of Synergetics common stock is required to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement.

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of Synergetics common stock entitled to vote and represented at the special meeting, in person or by proxy, is required to approve the proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Synergetics board of directors to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date.

Q: How does the Synergetics Board of Directors recommend that Synergetics shareholders vote?

A: The Synergetics board of directors recommends that Synergetics shareholders vote FOR the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement and FOR the proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Synergetics board of directors to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date. The Synergetics board of directors

has determined that the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement are advisable and in the best interests of Synergetics and its shareholders. Accordingly, the Synergetics board of directors has approved the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement. For a more complete description of the recommendation of the Synergetics board of directors, see THE SYNERGETICS SPECIAL MEETING Recommendation of the Synergetics Board of Directors beginning on page 45.

Q: How do the Synergetics directors and executive officers intend to vote on the merger?

- A: All of the directors of Synergetics and certain of their affiliates have entered into a voting agreement with Valley Forge and Synergetics pursuant to which they have agreed to vote all of their respective shares of Synergetics common stock in favor of Synergetics proposal to approve the merger agreement and the merger. At the close of business on May 2, 2005, the date of the merger agreement, such directors and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote 650,088 shares of Synergetics common stock, collectively representing approximately 19% of the shares of Synergetics and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote 650,088 shares and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote 650,088 shares of Synergetics common stock outstanding on that date. As of the record date for the Synergetics special meeting, such directors and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote 650,088 shares of Synergetics common stock, collectively representing approximately 19% of the shares of Synergetics and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote 650,088 shares of Synergetics common stock, collectively representing approximately 19% of the shares of Synergetics and their affiliates beneficially owned and were entitled to vote 650,088 shares of Synergetics common stock, collectively representing approximately 19% of the shares of Synergetics common stock outstanding on that date.
- Q: Do any of the Synergetics directors and executive officers have any special interests in the merger?
- A: In considering the recommendation of the Synergetics board of directors with respect to the merger agreement and the merger, you should be aware that members of the Synergetics board of directors and Synergetics executive officers have interests in the Synergetics merger that may be different than, or in addition to, the interests of Synergetics shareholders generally. These interests include:

the appointment of two current directors of Synergetics as directors of New Synergetics upon completion of the merger, and the appointment of certain executive officers of Synergetics as executive officers of New Synergetics upon completion of the merger;

the execution of three-year employment agreements between New Synergetics and each of Gregg D. Scheller and Kurt W. Gampp, Jr., providing for, among other things, the receipt of severance payments if Mr. Scheller or Mr. Gampp, as the case may be, were to be terminated without cause by New Synergetics or if Mr. Scheller or Mr. Gampp, as the case may be, were to resign for good reason; and

the continued indemnification of, and provision of directors and officers insurance coverage to, current directors and officers of Synergetics following the merger.

The Synergetics board of directors was aware of these interests and considered them, among other matters, in making its recommendation that the Synergetics shareholders approve the merger agreement and the merger contemplated therein and the grant of discretionary authority to the Synergetics board of directors to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date.

Q: Who will be on the New Synergetics board of directors if we complete the merger?

A: If Valley Forge and Synergetics complete the merger, subject to the approval of the Valley Forge shareholders, the seven director nominees set forth this joint proxy statement/prospectus will be the members of the New Synergetics board of directors.

In addition, the New Synergetics organizational documents will provide for a classified board of directors consisting of three classes, as nearly equal in size as practicable, with three-year staggered terms. Class A directors will be comprised of Juanita H. Hinshaw and Robert H. Dick. Class B directors will be comprised of Larry C. Cardinale and Guy R. Guarch. Class C directors will be

comprised of Gregg D. Scheller, Kurt W. Gampp, Jr. and Jerry L. Malis. Class A directors will serve for an initial term of one year and for three-year terms thereafter, if re-elected. Class B directors will serve for an initial term of two years and three-year terms thereafter, if re-elected. Class C directors will serve for an initial term of three years and three-year terms thereafter, if re-elected.

Of the seven nominees for election to the board of directors of Valley Forge, Gregg D. Scheller, Kurt W. Gampp, Jr., Juanita H. Hinshaw and Larry C. Cardinale, if elected, will not join the board of Valley Forge until consummation of the merger. If the merger is not completed, Valley Forge will fill up to two vacancies on the board of directors in accordance with its governing documents and applicable law. Valley Forge has not yet selected the potential board members to fill any such vacancies.

Q: What will happen if I abstain from voting or fail to vote?

A: An abstention occurs when a shareholder attends a meeting, either in person or by proxy, but abstains from voting. An abstention or the failure of a Valley Forge shareholder to vote does not constitute a vote cast for purposes of any of the proposals submitted to the Valley Forge shareholders at the annual meeting. Accordingly, an abstention or failure to vote has no effect on the votes related to any of the proposals submitted herein.

An abstention or the failure of a Synergetics shareholder to vote will have the same effect as voting AGAINST the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement and the proposal to grant discretionary authority to the Synergetics board of directors to adjourn or postpone the special meeting to a later date.

Q: Can I change my vote after I have delivered my proxy?

A: Yes. If you are a holder of record, you can change your vote at any time before your proxy is voted at the applicable shareholders meeting. You can do this using any of the following methods: timely delivery by mail of a valid, subsequently-dated proxy;

delivery to the Secretary of your company before or at the applicable shareholders meeting of written notice revoking your proxy or of your intention to vote by ballot at the applicable shareholders meeting; or

submitting a vote by ballot at the applicable shareholders meeting.

If you have instructed a street name holder to vote your shares, you must follow the street name holder s directions in order to change those instructions.

Q: What should I do if I receive more than one set of voting materials for my company s shareholders meeting?

A: You may receive more than one set of voting materials for your company s shareholders meeting, including multiple copies of this joint proxy statement/prospectus and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction forms. For example, if you hold your shares in more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate voting instruction form for each brokerage account in which you hold shares. If you are a holder of record and your shares are registered in more than one name or variations thereof, you will receive more than one proxy card. Please complete, sign, date and return each proxy card and voting instruction form that you receive.



Q: Am I entitled to dissenters rights?

A: Under Missouri law, holders of Synergetics common stock have the right to dissent from the merger and demand payment in cash of the fair value of the shares of Synergetics held by the dissenting shareholder in lieu of the merger consideration. This right is commonly known as a dissenters right. If the dissenting shareholder and surviving corporation do not agree on a fair value of the shares, a court of proper jurisdiction will determine the fair value of the shares upon the dissenting shareholder s petition, which could be more than, less than or equal to the value of the merger consideration. To exercise dissenters rights, Synergetics shareholders must strictly follow the procedures prescribed by Section 351.455 of the General and Business Corporation Law of Missouri (the

GBCLM). These procedures are summarized under the section entitled THE MERGER Dissenters Rights beginning on page 64. In addition, the text of Section 351.455 of the GBCLM is attached as Annex F to this joint proxy statement/prospectus. The information in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is being provided to you to assist you in determining whether to exercise your dissenters rights in connection with the merger. You should carefully read and consider the information included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus before making a decision. Any Synergetics shareholder wishing to exercise dissenters rights is urged to consult with legal counsel before attempting to exercise those rights.

Holders of Valley Forge common stock are not entitled to dissenters rights in connection with the issuance of Valley Forge common stock in the merger.

Neither Valley Forge shareholders nor Synergetics shareholders will have dissenters rights in connection with the reincorporation merger or the reverse stock split.

Q: Are there risks I should consider in deciding whether to vote for the merger?

A: Yes. In evaluating the merger, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in the section entitled RISK FACTORS on page 27.

Q: What do I need to do now?

A: After carefully reading and considering the information contained in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, please fill out, date and sign your proxy card. Then, mail your signed proxy card in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope as soon as possible so that your shares may be represented at the respective shareholders meetings. If you do not include instructions on how to vote your properly signed proxy card, your shares will be voted FOR the approval of the proposals set forth in this joint proxy statement/prospectus.

Q: What are the tax consequences to me of the merger?

A: Synergetics shareholders will not recognize any gain or loss upon the receipt of the Valley Forge common stock in the merger under Section 368(a)(1)(A) and (a)(2)(E) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the

Code), except with respect to cash received in lieu of fractional shares. If a Synergetics shareholder receives cash in lieu of a fractional share of Valley Forge common stock, such shareholder will be deemed to have received such fractional share and to have exchanged it for cash. Such shareholder will recognize gain or loss equal to the difference between the basis in the fractional share and the amount of cash received. Any gain recognized will be treated as capital gain unless the receipt of such cash has the effect of a distribution of a dividend for United States federal income tax purposes, in which case the gain will be treated as ordinary dividend income to the extent of a Synergetics shareholder s ratable share of Synergetics shareholder s holding period in Synergetics common stock is greater than one year. No gain or loss will be recognized by Synergetics, Valley Forge or Valley Forge shareholders as a result of the merger. Please read carefully the discussion in THE MERGER Material Federal Income Tax Consequences beginning on page 61.

Q: Should I send in my stock certificates now?

A: No. American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as exchange agent for this transaction, will send you written instructions on how to exchange your stock certificates as soon as practicable upon completion of the merger. You will be entitled to the rights of a Valley Forge shareholder upon consummation of the merger, even if you have not exchanged your stock certificates.

Q: How do the rights of Valley Forge shareholders compare to those of Synergetics shareholders?

A: The rights of Valley Forge shareholders are governed by Pennsylvania law and by Valley Forge s articles of incorporation and bylaws, while the rights of Synergetics shareholders are governed by Missouri law and Synergetics certificate of incorporation and bylaws. If the reincorporation merger is approved, the rights of the shareholders of Valley Forge (or New Synergetics) will be governed by Delaware law and Valley Forge s (or New Synergetics) certificate of incorporation and bylaws. If the reincorporation merger is not approved, the rights of the shareholders of New Synergetics-Pennsylvania will be governed by Pennsylvania law and Valley Forge s existing articles of incorporation and bylaws, as may be amended in accordance with Valley Forge proposal two submitted herein. For a summary of significant differences between the rights of Valley Forge shareholders and Synergetics shareholders, see COMPARISON OF RIGHTS OF HOLDERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS beginning on page 143.

Q: Why is Valley Forge proposing the reincorporation merger?

A: The Valley Forge board of directors has determined that it is prudent to reincorporate under the laws of the State of Delaware because it is important for Valley Forge to be able to draw upon well-established principles of corporate governance in making legal and business decisions. The prominence and predictability of Delaware corporate law provides a reliable foundation on which our governance decisions can be based, and Valley Forge believes that its shareholders will benefit from the responsiveness of Delaware corporate law to their needs and the needs of the corporation they own.

Q: What will I receive in the reincorporation merger?

- A: If Valley Forge completes the reincorporation merger, each share of Valley Forge common stock will be automatically converted into one share of VFSC Delaware, Inc., which is currently a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge, incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware.
- Q: What are the United States federal income tax consequences of the reincorporation merger to me?
- A: The reincorporation merger will constitute a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(F) of the Code. As a result, you will not recognize any gain or loss for United States federal income tax purposes as a result of the reincorporation merger.

Q: When does Valley Forge expect to complete the reincorporation merger?

- A: If Valley Forge s shareholders approve the reincorporation merger, Valley Forge will complete the reincorporation merger on or about the time of completing the merger. If Valley Forge shareholders approve the reincorporation merger, but do not approve the issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement, Valley Forge will complete the reincorporation as soon as practicable following the Valley Forge annual meeting.
- **Q:** Will the parties proceed with the merger if the Valley Forge shareholders do not approve the reincorporation merger?
- A: Under the terms of the merger agreement, the reincorporation of Valley Forge is required to complete the merger. If Valley Forge s shareholders approve the issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement, but not the

reincorporation merger, and the Synergetics shareholders approve the merger, the Synergetics board of directors must waive this condition in order for the merger to proceed, in which case Valley Forge will remain a Pennsylvania corporation.

Q: Whom should I contact if I have questions about the merger?

A: If you are a Synergetics shareholder and have questions about the merger, you should contact:

SYNERGETICS, INC. 3845 Corporate Centre Drive O Fallon, Missouri 63368 Phone Number: (636) 939-5100 Attn: Pamela G. Boone, Chief Financial Officer If you are a Valley Forge shareholder and have questions about the merger, you should contact: VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP. 3600 Horizon Drive King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 Phone Number: (484) 690-9000 Attn: Investor Relations 12

SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information from this joint proxy statement/prospectus and may not contain all of the information that is important to you. You should read carefully this joint proxy statement/prospectus and the description of your dissenters rights as a Synergetics shareholder under Missouri law set forth in Annex F. In addition, we encourage you to read the information incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus, which includes important business and financial information about Valley Forge that has been filed with the SEC. You may obtain the information incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/prospectus without charge by following the instructions in the section of this joint proxy statement/prospectus entitled WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION beginning on page 190. We have included page references parenthetically to direct you to more complete descriptions of the topics in this summary. **The Companies**

Valley Forge

Valley Forge Scientific Corp. 3600 Horizon Drive King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 (484) 690-9000

Valley Forge, incorporated in Pennsylvania in March 1980, is a medical device company that develops, manufactures and sells medical devices for use in surgery and other healthcare applications. Valley Forge s core business is the sale of bipolar electrosurgical generators and other generators, based on its proprietary DualWavetm technology, and complementary instrumentation and disposable products.

Valley Forge s current line of bipolar electrosurgical products is used in neurosurgery and spine surgery and in dental applications. Valley Forge also recently commenced selling a lesion generator for the percutaneous treatment of pain.

For over 20 years, Valley Forge has had worldwide exclusive distribution agreements with Codman & Shurtleff, Inc. (Codman), a subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, Inc., to market its bipolar electrosurgical systems and other products in the neurocranial and neurospinal fields. On October 15, 2004, Valley Forge entered into a new agreement with Codman defining their business relationship from October 1, 2004 to December 31, 2005. This agreement was amended effective March 1, 2005. On May 6, 2005, in accordance with the terms of the agreement, Valley Forge notified Codman that, effective July 15, 2005, Codman would be a nonexclusive worldwide distributor of Valley Forge s existing products in the fields of neurocranial and neurospinal surgery until December 31, 2005. Through July 15, 2005, Codman remained the exclusive worldwide distributor of Valley Forge s products in those fields.

Valley Forge s website address is www.vlfg.com. The information on Valley Forge s website is not a part of this prospectus.

Synergetics

Synergetics, Inc. 3845 Corporate Centre Drive O Fallon, Missouri 63368 (636) 939-5100

Synergetics, incorporated in Missouri in August 1991, is a medical device and distribution company that designs, manufactures and markets precision engineered microsurgical instruments for use in vitreoretinal surgery and neurosurgical applications. Vitreoretinal surgery is generally surgery performed on the most rearward portion of the eye surrounding the retina. Synergetics also develops and manufactures a specialized line of ophthalmic products as well as a complementary line of precision crafted neurosurgical instruments, capital equipment and disposables.

Synergetics has developed its own in-house marketing and distribution capabilities, as well as a network of approximately 40 third-party distributors and independent sales representatives servicing approximately 70 countries.

Synergetics website address is www.synergeticsusa.com. The information on Synergetics website is not a part of this prospectus.

The Merger

Merger Consideration

On May 2, 2005, Valley Forge and Synergetics entered into a merger agreement under which a newly formed subsidiary of Valley Forge will merge with Synergetics and as a result, Synergetics will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge. The merger agreement was amended on June 2, 2005 and further amended on July 15, 2005. A copy of the merger agreement, as amended, is included as Annex A to this joint proxy statement/prospectus. We encourage you to carefully read the merger agreement in its entirety because it is the legal document that governs the merger.

Pursuant to the merger, Synergetics shareholders will be entitled to receive an aggregate of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock. Such shareholders will be entitled to receive cash for any fractional share of Valley Forge common stock that they would otherwise receive pursuant to the merger. Until the completion of the merger, the trading price of Valley Forge common stock could fluctuate. Because Synergetics shareholders will receive a fixed number of shares of Valley Forge common stock in the merger, the value of Valley Forge common stock such shareholders will receive could fluctuate as well. Therefore, Synergetics shareholders will not know the precise overall economic value of the merger consideration they will receive until the closing date of the merger. In addition, the aggregate number of shares of Valley Forge common stock to be received by Synergetics shareholders in the merger could be adjusted if the reverse stock split described in this joint proxy statement/prospectus is effected before the closing of the merger. If, however, the reverse stock split is effected after the closing of the merger, Synergetics shareholders will receive the merger consideration without adjustment, but shortly thereafter, upon the effectiveness of the reverse stock split, such shareholders, together with all other shareholders of New Synergetics, including the existing Valley Forge shareholders, will have their total number of shares proportionately adjusted. Regardless of any such adjustment, Synergetics shareholders will own approximately 66% of the outstanding Valley Forge shares on a fully diluted basis following the merger. See VALLEY FORGE PROPOSAL 7 BOARD DISCRETION TO EFFECT REVERSE STOCK SPLIT beginning at page 174.

At the completion of the merger, each outstanding option to purchase Synergetics common stock will be assumed by Valley Forge and converted into options to acquire Valley Forge common stock. Pursuant to the terms of the Synergetics Incentive Stock Option Plan, 12,500 options of the 37,500 options to purchase shares of Synergetics common stock assumed by Valley Forge will be vested at the completion of the merger.

For ease of reference, when we refer to Valley Forge throughout this joint proxy statement/ prospectus, we are referring to Valley Forge Scientific Corp. as a Pennsylvania corporation. When we specifically refer to the Delaware successor to Valley Forge Scientific Corp. following the reincorporation merger for which approval of the Valley Forge shareholders is being solicited, or the combined company generally, we will refer to New Synergetics. When we describe information unique to the combined company as a Pennsylvania corporation, in the case that the Valley Forge shareholders do not approve the reincorporation merger, and the Synergetics board waives such condition to the merger, we will refer to the combined company as New Synergetics-Pennsylvania.

Vote Required (see pages 39 and 44)

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of Valley Forge common stock represented and voting at the annual meeting is required to approve the proposal to issue the shares of

Valley Forge common stock to the Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement, provided a quorum is present. As of July 22, 2005, the record date for the annual meeting, directors and executive officers of Valley Forge and their respective affiliates were entitled to vote 2,694,893 shares of Valley Forge common stock, collectively representing approximately 34% of the shares of Valley Forge common stock outstanding on that date.

The affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds of the shares of Synergetics common stock entitled to vote at the Synergetics special meeting is required to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement. As of August 9, 2005, the record date for the Synergetics special meeting, directors and executive officers of Synergetics and their respective affiliates were entitled to vote 650,088 shares of Synergetics common stock, collectively representing approximately 19% of the shares of Synergetics common stock outstanding on that date.

Ownership of Valley Forge Following the Merger (see page 66)

Synergetics shareholders will receive an aggregate of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock pursuant to the merger, or approximately 66% of the fully diluted total number of shares of Valley Forge common stock outstanding following the merger, based on the number of shares of Valley Forge common stock outstanding on May 2, 2005.

Valley Forge Board of Directors after the Merger (see page 73)

Upon the completion of the merger, the Valley Forge board of directors will be increased to seven members. Subject to the approval of Valley Forge shareholders, the directors of Valley Forge after the merger will be as follows: (i) Juanita H. Hinshaw and Robert H. Dick will serve as Class A directors until the next annual meeting of New Synergetics shareholders; (ii) Larry C. Cardinale and Guy R. Guarch will serve as Class B directors until the annual meeting of New Synergetics shareholders in 2007; and Jerry L. Malis, President and Chief Executive Officer of Valley Forge, Gregg D. Scheller, President and Chief Executive Officer of Synergetics, and Kurt W. Gampp, Jr., Chief Operating Officer of Synergetics, will serve as Class C directors until the annual meeting of New Synergetics shareholders in 2008.

Of the seven nominees for election to the board of directors of Valley Forge, Gregg D. Scheller, Kurt W. Gampp, Jr., Juanita H. Hinshaw and Larry C. Cardinale, if elected, will not join the board of Valley Forge until consummation of the merger.

Interests of Valley Forge Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger (see page 59)

Certain directors and Jerry L. Malis, President and Chief Executive Officer of Valley Forge, have interests in the merger as directors or executive officers that are different from, or in addition to, those of Valley Forge shareholders generally. If Valley Forge completes the merger, certain indemnification arrangements for current directors and executive officers of Valley Forge will be continued and it is anticipated that certain directors and Mr. Malis will be retained as directors and an executive officer of New Synergetics. In addition, Mr. Malis will enter into a three-year employment agreement with New Synergetics and Dr. Leonard I. Malis will receive \$4,157,504 over a period of approximately six years in connection with the exercise of an option granted to Valley Forge to purchase the Malis® trademark, which payment will be evidenced by a promissory note secured by a security interest in the trademark and certain patents. It is a condition to the completion of the merger that Valley Forge exercises this option before the closing.

Interests of Synergetics Directors and Executive Officers in the Merger (see page 59)

Certain directors and executive officers of Synergetics have interests in the merger as directors or executive officers that are different from, or in addition to, those of Synergetics shareholders generally. If Synergetics completes the merger, certain indemnification arrangements for current directors and executive officers of Synergetics will be continued, and it is anticipated that certain directors and executive officers of

Synergetics will be retained as directors and executive officers of New Synergetics. In addition, Gregg D. Scheller and Kurt W. Gampp, Jr. will enter into three-year employment agreements with New Synergetics.

Material Federal Income Tax Consequences (see page 61)

We have structured the merger so that, in general, no gain or loss will be recognized by Synergetics shareholders for United States federal income tax purposes on the exchange of shares of Synergetics common stock for shares of Valley Forge common stock under Section 368(a)(1)(A) and (a)(2)(E) of the Code. Synergetics shareholders, however, will recognize gain for United States federal income tax purposes on any cash received in lieu of fractional shares. Synergetics has received the opinion of Armstrong Teasdale LLP to this effect. The legal opinion excludes the effect of the reincorporation merger of Valley Forge under Section 368(a)(1)(F) of the Code on the merger under Section 368(a)(1)(A) and (a)(2)(E) of the Code. Valley Forge has received the opinion of Fox Rothschild LLP that the reincorporation merger under Section 368(a)(1)(F) of the Code will not disqualify or otherwise alter treatment of the merger as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(A) and (a)(2)(E) of the Code. Delivery of these opinions is a condition to completion of the merger.

Tax matters are very complicated, and the tax consequences of the merger to Synergetics shareholders will depend on the facts of their own situations. Synergetics shareholders should read carefully the discussion in the section entitled THE MERGER Material Federal Income Tax Consequences beginning on page 61 and to consult their own tax advisors for a full understanding of the specific tax consequences of the merger to them.

Accounting Treatment (see page 63)

The transaction described in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus will be accounted for as a purchase, as that term is used under generally accepted accounting principles, commonly referred to as GAAP, for accounting and financial reporting purposes. Valley Forge will be treated as the acquired corporation for these purposes. Valley Forge s assets, liabilities and other items will be adjusted to their fair value with fair value of the acquired corporation determined based on the quoted market price of Valley Forge s common stock for a reasonable period before and after the date that the terms of the acquisition were agreed to and announced and combined with the historical carrying values of the assets and liabilities of Synergetics. Applicable income tax effects of these adjustments will be included as a component of the combined company s deferred tax asset or liability. Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives resulting from this transaction will be reported as long-term assets subject to annual impairment reviews.

Regulatory Approvals (see page 64)

Other than the filing of a certificate of merger under Delaware law and Missouri law with respect to the merger, Valley Forge and Synergetics do not believe that any additional material government filings are required with respect to the merger.

Dissenters Rights (see page 64)

Under Missouri law, Synergetics shareholders who dissent from the merger and comply with the procedural requirements of Section 351.455 of the GBCLM, more fully described under the section entitled THE MERGER Dissenters Rights beginning on page 64, may demand payment in cash of the fair value of their shares of Synergetics common stock in lieu of the merger consideration. These rights are commonly known as dissenters rights. If the dissenting shareholder and surviving corporation do not agree on a fair value of the shares, a court of proper jurisdiction will determine the fair value upon the dissenting shareholder s petition, which could be more than, less than or equal to the value of the merger consideration. Dissenting shareholders lose their dissenters rights if they fail to follow all of the procedures required by Section 351.455 of the GBCLM. In addition to reviewing the information on page 64 concerning these rights, shareholders wishing to exercise their dissenters rights should read

Section 351.455 of the GBCLM, attached as Annex F, and are urged to consult with legal counsel before exercising their rights.

Conditions to Completion of the Merger (see page 75)

A number of conditions must be satisfied before the merger will be completed. These include among others: the approval of the issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock to the Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement by the Valley Forge shareholders, and the approval and adoption of the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement by the Synergetics shareholders;

the SEC must have declared this registration statement effective;

the absence of any legal restraints or prohibitions preventing the completion of the merger;

Valley Forge must have filed with The Nasdaq Stock Market the necessary application to list the shares issuable in connection with the merger;

the delivery to Synergetics of a tax opinion of legal counsel to the effect that the merger will qualify as a reorganization within the meaning of Section 368(a)(1)(A) and (a)(2)(E) of the Code;

the nominees for the Valley Forge board of directors as set forth in this joint proxy statement/prospectus shall have been properly elected by the Valley Forge shareholders;

the Valley Forge shareholders shall have approved the proposal granting the Valley Forge board of directors the discretion to effect a reverse stock split;

the representations and warranties of each party contained in the merger agreement being true and correct, except to the extent that breaches of these representations and warranties would not result in a material adverse effect on the representing party;

the performance or compliance in all material respects of each party with all agreements and covenants contained in the merger agreement at the completion of the merger; and

the absence of events or developments since the date of the merger agreement that would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect with respect to either party.

Each of Valley Forge, MergerSub and Synergetics may waive certain of the conditions to the performance of its respective obligations under the merger agreement and complete the merger even though one or more of these conditions has not been met. Neither Valley Forge nor Synergetics can give any assurance that all of the conditions to the merger will be either satisfied or waived or that the merger will occur.

Termination of the Merger Agreement (see page 77)

Under the circumstances specified in the merger agreement, either Valley Forge or Synergetics may terminate the merger agreement. Subject to the limitations set forth in the merger agreement, the circumstances generally include if: there is mutual written consent of Valley Forge and Synergetics;

the merger is not completed by September 30, 2005, provided that neither party may terminate the merger agreement if its breach precluded the consummation of the merger;

the required approval of the shareholders of each of Valley Forge and Synergetics has not been obtained at their respective shareholders meetings;

the other party materially breaches its representations or warranties in the merger agreement;

the other party fails to satisfy any of the conditions specified in the merger agreement by September 30, 2005; or

the other party fails to perform or comply with any material covenant or agreement contained in the merger agreement and such failure is not cured within 30 days after receiving written notice of such failure. *Break-Up Fee (see page 77)*

If, under certain limited circumstances specified in the merger agreement, either Valley Forge or Synergetics desires to terminate the merger agreement, the other party may be required to pay the terminating party a break-up fee of \$1,000,000.

Valley Forge Common Stock is Freely Transferable by Non-Affiliates (see page 64)

Valley Forge common stock issued in the merger will be freely transferable by Synergetics shareholders immediately following the merger unless a shareholder is deemed to be an affiliate of Synergetics under applicable federal securities laws. Generally, affiliates include directors, executive officers and persons holding more than 10% of Synergetics outstanding stock. In addition, certain affiliates of Synergetics will be subject to contractual transfer restrictions as provided in the shareholders agreement.

Reasons for the Merger (see page 50)

The boards of directors of Valley Forge and Synergetics believe that by combining the complementary, non-overlapping product lines and distribution networks of the two companies, New Synergetics can generate improved long-term operating and financial results and establish a stronger competitive position in the industry. The boards further believe that the combination of Synergetics unique capabilities in design and manufacture of microsurgical hand instruments and Valley Forge s unique capabilities in medical electronics will provide New Synergetics with the ability to broaden the markets for products of both entities and increase the penetration in existing markets. Each of the boards of directors of Valley Forge and Synergetics has identified additional potential mutual benefits of the merger that they believe will contribute to the success of New Synergetics. These potential benefits include principally the following:

the merger s resultant combined technologies, including technology bases in power generation, bipolar delivery systems, waveform technology, finely machined hand tools, illumination systems and lasers, will open access to applications in other surgical and microsurgical fields;

the combination of research and development teams will provide a greater depth of experience, knowledge and resources and will lessen our dependence on outside sources; and

the creation of a larger sales and service organization worldwide, including our distribution partners, the expansion of the companies dedicated sales teams and a higher profile with customers, presenting greater opportunities for marketing the products of New Synergetics.

Valley Forge and Synergetics have each identified additional reasons for the merger, which are discussed below. See THE MERGER Joint Reasons for the Merger, THE MERGER Additional Valley Forge Reasons for the Merger and THE MERGER Additional Synergetics Reasons for the Merger.

Opinion of Valley Forge Financial Advisor (see page 53)

Valley Forge s financial advisor delivered to the Valley Forge board of directors an opinion that, based upon and subject to the considerations and assumptions contained in the opinion, the merger transaction is fair from a financial point of view to the Valley Forge shareholders. The opinion is attached to this joint proxy statement/prospectus as Annex E. The opinion was provided for the information and assistance of

the Valley Forge board of directors in connection with its consideration of the merger and is not a recommendation as to how any holder of Valley Forge common stock should vote. **Recent Developments**

VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP.

| | | onths Ended ne 30, | Nine Months Ende June 30, | | |
|---|----------|----------------------------|------------------------------------|----------|--|
| | 2005 | 2004 | 2005 | 2004 | |
| | | audited) thousands, exc | (Unaudited) ept per share data) | | |
| Statement of Operations Data: | | | | | |
| Net sales | \$ 1,698 | \$ 1,274 | \$ 4,926 | \$ 3,607 | |
| Cost of sales | 738 | 622 | 2,221 | 1,690 | |
| Gross profit | 960 | 652 | 2,705 | 1,917 | |
| Income (loss) from operations | (122) | 110 | 254 | 245 | |
| Net income | | 65 | 139 | 146 | |
| Earnings per common share from continuing operations: | | | | | |
| Basic | \$ | \$ 0.01 | \$ 0.02 | \$ 0.02 | |
| Diluted | \$ | \$ 0.01 | \$ 0.02 | \$ 0.02 | |

June 30, 2005

| | (Unaudited) (In thousands) |
|---------------------------|-------------------------------|
| Balance Sheet Data: | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 2,387 |
| Current assets | 4,332 |
| Total assets | 4,944 |
| Current liabilities | 480 |
| Long-term liabilities | 0 |
| Retained earnings | 860 |
| Stockholders equity | 4,449 |

On August 11, 2005, Valley Forge announced its financial results for the third quarter of fiscal 2005. Valley Forge reported that sales for the third quarter of fiscal 2005 were \$1,697,982, an increase of 33% from sales of \$1,274,389 for the third quarter of fiscal 2004. Primarily as a result of one-time merger related expenses of \$436,729, Valley Forge had an operating loss of \$121,799 for the third quarter of fiscal 2005 as compared to operating income of \$109,721 for the third quarter of fiscal 2004. Net income for the third quarter of fiscal 2005 was \$182, or \$0.00 per basic and diluted share, as compared to net income of \$65,006, or \$0.01 per basic and diluted share, for the third quarter of fiscal 2004.

Valley Forge further reported that sales for the first nine months of fiscal 2005 were \$4,926,387, an increase of 37% from sales of \$3,606,629 for the first nine months of fiscal 2004. The one-time merger related expenses also negatively impacted operating income for the first nine months of fiscal 2005, which was \$254,354 as compared to \$245,191 for the first nine months of fiscal 2004. Net income for the first nine months of fiscal 2005 was \$139,066, or \$0.02 per basic and diluted share, as compared to \$145,564, or \$0.02 per basic and diluted share, for the first nine months of fiscal 2004.

Sales

The increase in sales reflects sales to Stryker Corporation (Stryker), pursuant to an exclusive supply and distribution agreement for the lesion generator model Valley Forge developed for the percutaneous treatment of pain, and increased sales to Codman.

For the third quarter of fiscal 2005, sales to Stryker accounted for \$177,730, or 10% of sales, and for the first nine months of fiscal 2005, sales to Stryker were \$965,779, or 20% of sales. After only eight

months into the first year of the supply and distribution agreement, Stryker has already exceeded the first year \$900,000 minimum purchase level set forth in that agreement.

For the third quarter of fiscal 2005, sales to Codman accounted for \$1,438,304, or 85% of sales, as compared to \$1,040,347, or 82% of sales, for the third quarter of fiscal 2004. For the first nine months of fiscal 2005, sales to Codman were \$3,628,436, or 74% of sales, as compared to \$3,044,868, or 84% of sales, for the first nine months of fiscal 2004. On July 15, 2005, the distribution agreement with Codman became a nonexclusive arrangement.

For the third quarter of fiscal 2005, sales of dental products decreased to \$79,708, or 5% of sales, from \$107,948, or 8% of sales, in the third quarter of fiscal 2004. For the first nine months of fiscal 2005, sales of dental products were \$298,879, or 6% of sales, compared to \$398,563, or 11% of sales, for the first nine months of fiscal 2004. Product modifications and other strategies for dental products are currently being considered.

Gross Margin

Gross margin for the third quarter of fiscal 2005 was 57% and 55% for the first nine months of fiscal 2005, as compared to 51% for the third quarter of fiscal 2004 and 53% for the first nine months of fiscal 2004.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$108,524, or 26%, to \$526,223 for the third quarter of fiscal 2005, as compared to \$417,699 for the third quarter of fiscal 2004. For the first nine months of fiscal 2005, selling, general and administrative expenses increased by \$160,421, or 12%, to \$1,446,665, as compared to \$1,286,244 for the first nine months of fiscal 2004. For the third quarter of fiscal 2005, rent expense increased as a result of Valley Forge entering into a lease for a new office, assembly, engineering and manufacturing facility in King of Prussia, Pennsylvania effective May 1, 2005.

The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses also reflects one-time expenses incurred in connection with Valley Forge relocating to this facility in late June and early July 2005.

Merger Related Professional Fees

Valley Forge incurred professional fees of approximately \$437,000 in connection with the merger for the third quarter of fiscal 2005, and approximately \$519,000, for the first nine months of fiscal 2005. It is expected that these fees will continue in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 as additional professional fees and printing costs are incurred in connection with the merger.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses were \$108,307 for the third quarter of fiscal 2005 as compared to \$114,754 for the third quarter of fiscal 2004. For the first nine months of fiscal 2005, research and development expenses were \$454,752, as compared to \$355,662 for the first nine months of fiscal 2004.

Sale of Manufacturing Facility

In the third quarter of fiscal 2005, Valley Forge s wholly-owned subsidiary, Diversified Electronics Company, Inc., sold the Philadelphia, Pennsylvania manufacturing and assembly facility for net sales proceeds of \$185,788, which resulted in a \$111,674 gain on the sale.

Settlement of Lawsuit

In the second quarter of fiscal 2005, Valley Forge recorded an expense of \$150,000 in connection with the settlement of a previously disclosed lawsuit in which Valley Forge was one of the defendants. In April 2005, without admitting liability in this disputed claim, and as a precondition to Valley Forge s merger agreement with Synergetics, a settlement agreement and release was entered into in which Valley Forge paid \$150,000 toward the plaintiffs expenses in the lawsuit.

Earnings Release

Valley Forge s operating results for the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2005 were disclosed in Valley Forge s earnings release for the quarter ended June 30, 2005, which was filed as an exhibit to a Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC by Valley Forge on August 11, 2005 and incorporated by reference into this joint proxy statement/ prospectus.

Summary Selected Historical Financial Data of Valley Forge

The following tables summarize Valley Forge s consolidated financial data. The statement of operations data for the years ended September 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and the balance sheet data as of September 30, 2004 and 2003 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/prospectus. The consolidated statement of operations for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 and the balance sheet data as of September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000 and the balance sheet data as of September 30, 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements that are not included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, but are available upon request. The financial data at March 31, 2005 and for the six months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004 are derived from unaudited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/prospectus and, in the opinion of Valley Forge s management, include all necessary adjustments for a fair presentation of those data in conformity with GAAP. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations to be expected in the future. Results for the six-month period ended March 31, 2005 may not be indicative of the results for the full fiscal year or for any other future period. You should read the summary consolidated financial data together with the consolidated financial statements and related notes of Valley Forge and the other financial information of Valley Forge included in this joint proxy statement/prospectus, as well as

VALLEY FORGE MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS beginning on page 125.

| | | Fiscal Year | | Six Months Ended March 31, | | | |
|--|----------|-------------|-------------|-------------------------------|-------------|----------|-------------|
| | 2004 | 2003 | 2002 | 2001 | 2000 | 2005 | 2004 |
| | | | (In thousan | ds, except p | er share da | ita) | (Unaudited) |
| Statements of Operations Data: | | | | | | | (Unaudited) |
| Net sales | \$ 4,756 | \$ 4,474 | \$ 5,022 | \$ 5,263 | \$ 4,398 | \$ 3,228 | \$ 2,332 |
| Cost of sales | 2,316 | 2,265 | 2,463 | 2,692 | 2,443 | 1,483 | 1,067 |
| Gross profit | 2,440 | 2,209 | 2,559 | 2,571 | 1,955 | 1,746 | 1,265 |
| Income (loss) from operations | 178 | 155 | 632 | 486 | (111) | 376 | 135 |
| Net income (loss) | 111 | 109 | 381 | 330 | (54) | 139 | 81 |
| Earnings (loss) per common share from continuing operations: | | | | | | | |
| Basic | \$ 0.01 | \$ 0.01 | \$ 0.05 | \$ 0.04 | \$ (0.01) | \$ 0.02 | \$ 0.01 |
| Diluted | \$ 0.01 | \$ 0.01 | \$ 0.05 | \$ 0.04 | \$ (0.01) | \$ 0.02 | \$ 0.01 |

| | | September 30, | | | | | | |
|-----------------------------|----------|---------------|----------|----------|--------|-------------------|--|--|
| | 2004 | 2003 | 2002 | 2001 | 2000 | March 31, 2005 | | |
| | | | (In the | ousands) | | (Unaudited) | | |
| Balance Sheets Data: | | | | | | (0111111111) | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 2,323 | \$ 2,306 | \$ 2,544 | \$ 1,501 | \$ 965 | \$ 2,647 | | |
| Current assets | 3,977 | 3,777 | 3,982 | 3,517 | 3,094 | 4,500 | | |
| Total assets | 4,523 | 4,374 | 4,570 | 4,171 | 3,852 | 5,061 | | |
| Current liabilities | 258 | 216 | 353 | 283 | 182 | 657 | | |
| Long-term liabilities | 16 | 20 | 14 | 19 | 21 | 15 | | |
| Retained earnings (deficit) | 721 | 609 | 501 | 120 | (210) | 860 | | |
| Stockholders equity | 4,249 | 4,138 | 4,202 | 3,869 | 3,649 | 4,388 | | |

Summary Selected Historical Financial Data of Synergetics

The following tables summarize Synergetics consolidated financial data. The statements of income data for the years ended July 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 and the balance sheets data as of July 31, 2004 and 2003 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus. The consolidated statements of income for the years ended July 31, 2001 and 2000 and the balance sheets data as of July 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements that are not included in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus. The financial data at April 29, 2005 and for the nine months ended April 29, 2005 and 2004 are derived from unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus and, in the opinion of Synergetics management, include all necessary adjustments for a fair presentation of those data in conformity with GAAP. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations to be expected in the future. Results for the nine-month period ended April 29, 2005 may not be indicative of the results for the full fiscal year or for any other future period. You should read the summary consolidated financial data together with the audited consolidated financial statements, unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto of Synergetics appearing elsewhere in this prospectus, as well as SYNERGETICS MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS beginning on page 101 and the other financial information of Synergetics included elsewhere in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus.

| | | Fiscal Ye | Nine Months Ended April 29, | | | | |
|-------------------------------|-----------|-----------|--------------------------------|------------|------------|-----------|-----------|
| | 2004 | 2003 | 2002 | 2001 | 2000 | 2005 | 2004 |
| | | (| In thousands | except per | share data | , | udited) |
| Statements of Income Data: | | | | | | (0 | |
| Net sales | \$ 16,887 | \$ 13,017 | \$ 10,447 | \$ 8,315 | \$ 7,103 | \$ 16,072 | \$ 11,841 |
| Cost of sales | 6,514 | 4,483 | 3,609 | 3,853 | 3,097 | 5,896 | 4,814 |
| Gross profit | 10,373 | 8,534 | 6,838 | 4,462 | 4,007 | 10,176 | 7,027 |
| Income from operations | 1,690 | 1,866 | 1,572 | 251 | 925 | 2,059 | 955 |
| Net income | 1,094 | 1,091 | 1,004 | 113 | 583 | 1,182 | 591 |
| Earnings per common share: | | | | | | | |

Edgar Filing: VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP - Form S-4/A

| Basic | \$ 0.32 | \$ 0.32 | \$ | 0.31 | \$ 0.04 | \$ 0.20 | \$ 0.35 | \$ 0.17 |
|---------|------------|------------|----|------|------------|------------|------------|------------|
| Diluted | \$ 0.32 | \$ 0.32 | \$ | 0.31 | \$ 0.04 | \$ 0.19 | \$ 0.35 | \$ 0.17 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | 22 | | | | | |

| | | July 31, | | | | | | |
|---------------------------|----------|----------|---------|----------|----------|-------------------|--|--|
| | 2004 | 2003 | 2002 | 2001 | 2000 | April 29, 2005 | | |
| | | | (In tho | usands) | | (Unaudited) | | |
| Balance Sheets Data: | | | | | | (Chaddited) | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 1,540 | \$ 1,049 | \$ 943 | \$ 1,249 | \$ 1,659 | \$ 614 | | |
| Current assets | 9,563 | 7,709 | 5,920 | 4,980 | 4,695 | 11,397 | | |
| Total assets | 14,474 | 12,254 | 7,724 | 6,144 | 6,326 | 16,886 | | |
| Current liabilities | 2,862 | 1,687 | 1,396 | 1,724 | 788 | 3,286 | | |
| Long-term liabilities | 3,113 | 3,251 | 254 | 234 | 1,377 | 3,736 | | |
| Retained earnings | 3,944 | 2,851 | 1,760 | 756 | 644 | 5,126 | | |
| Stockholders equity | 8,499 | 7,316 | 6,074 | 4,185 | 4,161 | 9,863 | | |

Selected Unaudited Consolidated Pro Forma Combined Financial Data

The following selected unaudited pro forma financial information is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of (i) results of operations and financial position that would have been achieved if Valley Forge and Synergetics had been merged or (ii) the future operations of the combined company. The following table should be relied on only for the limited purpose of presenting what the results of operations and financial position of the combined businesses of Valley Forge and Synergetics might have looked like had the merger taken place at an earlier date. For a discussion of the assumptions and adjustments made in the preparation of the pro forma financial information presented in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus statement, see the section captioned UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS beginning on page 81. The selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of Valley Forge and Synergetics and other information filed by Valley Forge and Synergetics with the SEC included elsewhere in, and incorporated by reference into, this joint proxy statement/ prospectus. See WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION beginning on page 190.

The following selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data for the statement of income dates gives effect to the merger as if it had occurred as of the beginning of the periods presented. The unaudited condensed statement of income for the nine months ended March 31, 2005 for Valley Forge was derived by taking the year ended September 30, 2004 less the nine months ended June 30, 2004 and adding the six months ended March 31, 2005. The selected unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial data for the balance sheet gives effect to the merger as if it had occurred as of the balance sheet dates presented.

| | Nine Month Periods Ended April 29, 2005 and | | Years Ended | | |
|---|--|--------------------|-----------------|-------------------|--|
| | | | July 31 | , 2004 and | |
| | Marc | h 31, 2005 | 2 | ember 30, 2004 | |
| | | (In thousands, exc | ept per snare o | lata) | |
| Statements of Income Data: | | | | | |
| Income from operations | \$ | 2,059 | \$ | 1,363 | |
| Earnings per common share from continuing | | | | | |

0.04

\$

\$

operations: Basic

0.03

| Diluted | \$ | 0.04 | \$ 0.03 | |
|---------|----|------|------------|--|
| | 22 | | | |
| | 23 | | | |

April 29, 2005 and March 31, 2005

| | (In th | ousands) |
|-----------------------|--------|----------|
| Balance Sheet Data: | | |
| Current assets | \$ | 15,947 |
| Total assets | | 42,131 |
| Current liabilities | | 4,401 |
| Long-term liabilities | | 9,394 |
| Shareholders equity | | 28,336 |

Comparative Per Share Data

The following table presents net income and book value per share data for Valley Forge and Synergetics on (i) a historical basis and (ii) a pro forma combined basis per share of Valley Forge common stock, giving effect to the merger.

The following information should be read in conjunction with (i) the historical consolidated financial statements and related notes of Valley Forge and Synergetics included elsewhere in, and incorporated by reference into, this joint proxy statement/ prospectus statement and (ii) the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements and the accompanying notes in the section captioned UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS beginning on page 81. The pro forma financial information is presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have resulted if the merger had been completed as of the assumed dates or of the results that will be achieved in the future. The annual periods referred to below are fiscal year ended July 31, 2004 for Synergetics and fiscal year ended September 30, 2004 for Valley Forge. The interim periods referred to below are nine months ended April 29, 2005 for Synergetics and nine months ended March 31, 2005 for Valley Forge.

| | Histo Syner | orical getics | orical 7 Forge | - | Forma 1bined | Equ (Syne | Forma ivalent of Dne ergetics are(1) |
|--------------------------------------|----------------|------------------|-------------------|----|-----------------|------------------|---|
| Earnings per common share | | | | | | | |
| Basic: | | | | | | | |
| Annual periods | \$ | 0.32 | \$ 0.01 | \$ | 0.03 | \$ | 0.14 |
| Interim periods | | 0.35 | 0.01 | | 0.04 | | 0.18 |
| Earnings per common share | | | | | | | |
| Diluted: | | | | | | | |
| Annual periods | \$ | 0.32 | \$ 0.01 | \$ | 0.03 | \$ | 0.14 |
| Interim periods | | 0.35 | 0.01 | | 0.04 | | 0.18 |
| Book value of equity per common | | | | | | | |
| share: | | | | | | | |
| End of annual periods | \$ | 2.49 | \$ 0.54 | \$ | 1.14 | \$ | 5.24 |
| End of interim periods | | 2.85 | 0.55 | | 1.19 | | 5.47 |
| Dividends declared per common share: | | | | | | | |
| Annual periods | \$ | | \$ | \$ | | \$ | |

Edgar Filing: VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP - Form S-4/A

| Interim periods | | | |
|------------------------------|-----------|-----------|------------|
| Weighted average outstanding | | | |
| common shares Basic: | | | |
| Annual periods | 3,401,184 | 7,913,712 | 23,887,624 |
| Interim periods | 3,412,973 | 7,913,712 | 23,887,624 |
| Weighted average outstanding | | | |
| common shares Diluted: | | | |
| Annual periods | 3,413,866 | 7,976,833 | 24,009,082 |
| Interim periods | 3,425,654 | 7,970,336 | 24,002,581 |

(1) The pro forma equivalent of Synergetics share amounts were calculated by applying the exchange ratio of approximately 4.6 to the pro forma combined net earnings and book value per share assuming the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock.

24

Market Price and Dividend Information

Valley Forge common stock is listed on the Boston Stock Exchange under the trading symbol VLF and traded on the over-the-counter market on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market under the trading symbol VLFG. On May 2, 2005, the last full trading day before the public announcement of the proposed merger, the last reported sale price of one share of Valley Forge common stock, as reported on Nasdaq, was \$1.87. On August 11, 2005, the last day for which information was available before the date of this joint proxy statement/ prospectus, the last reported sale price of one share of Valley Forge common stock, as reported on Nasdaq, was \$4.22. Synergetics is unable to provide information with respect to the market price of shares of Synergetics common stock, and the equivalent per share market prices of Valley Forge common stock have been omitted, because there is no trading market for shares of Synergetics common stock.

Valley Forge has not paid dividends to date and does not anticipate paying any dividends on its common stock in the foreseeable future. Synergetics has not paid a dividend to holders of its common stock since 1996.

25

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This joint proxy statement/ prospectus contains and incorporates by reference forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 with respect to the financial condition, results of operations, business strategies, competitive positions, growth opportunities for existing products and plans and objectives of management of Valley Forge and Synergetics, as well as the market for Valley Forge common stock and other matters. Statements in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus that are not historical facts are hereby identified as

forward-looking statements for the purpose of the safe harbor provided by Section 21E of the Exchange Act and Section 27A of the Securities Act. These forward-looking statements, including those relating to the future business prospects, revenues and income of Valley Forge and Synergetics, wherever they occur in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus, are necessarily estimates reflecting the judgment of the management of Valley Forge and Synergetics and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those suggested by the forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements should, therefore, be considered in light of various important factors, including those contained or incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus.

Words such as estimate, project, plan, intend, expect, believe and similar expressions are intended to iden forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are found at various places throughout this joint proxy statement/ prospectus and the other documents incorporated by reference, including the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2004 of Valley Forge. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date of this joint proxy statement/ prospectus. The forward-looking statements included in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus are made only as of the date hereof. Except as required under United States federal securities laws and the rules and regulations of the SEC, we do not undertake any obligation to update publicly or release any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this joint proxy statement/ prospectus or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

The risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are involved in these forward-looking statements include those risks and uncertainties described in RISK FACTORS beginning on page 27 of this joint proxy statement/ prospectus. Those risks are representative of the risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could cause actual outcomes and results to differ materially from what is expressed or forecast in forward-looking statements.

In addition to the risk factors identified elsewhere, important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from estimates or projections contained in the forward-looking statements include, without limitation:

the effects of local and national economic, credit and capital market conditions on the economy in general, and on the medical device industry in particular, and the effects of foreign exchange rates and interest rates;

the ability to obtain the approvals of each company s shareholders, to obtain or meet the closing conditions in the merger agreement, and to otherwise complete the merger in a timely manner;

the ability to timely and cost-effectively integrate the operations and management of Valley Forge and Synergetics;

the ability to realize the synergies and other perceived advantages resulting from the merger;

the ability to retain and attract key personnel both before and after the merger;

the ability of each company to successfully execute its business strategies;

the extent and timing of market acceptance of new products or product indications;

the ability of each company to procure, maintain, enforce and defend its patents and proprietary

Edgar Filing: VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP - Form S-4/A

changes in laws, including increased tax rates, regulations or accounting standards, third-party relations and approvals, and decisions of courts, regulators and governmental bodies;

the ability of the combined company to continue to increase customer loyalty;

the ability to recoup costs of capital investments through higher revenues;

environmental restrictions, soil and water conditions, weather and other hazards, site access matters and building permit issues;

the effects of environmental and structural building conditions relating to our properties;

acts of war or terrorism incidents; and

the effects of operating and market competition.

26

RISK FACTORS

In determining whether to vote for approval of the issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement (including the related Valley Forge proposals described in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus), in the case of Valley Forge shareholders, or for approval and adoption of the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement or whether to exercise dissenters rights in connection with the merger, in the case of Synergetics shareholders, you should consider carefully the matters described below and the other information included and incorporated by reference in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus, including the risk factors and other considerations set forth in the reports and documents filed by Valley Forge with the SEC. See INFORMATION INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE on page 190. **Risks Relating to the Merger**

The issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders in the merger will cause a significant reduction in the relative percentage interest of current Synergetics shareholders in earnings of the combined company relative to the comparable earnings of Synergetics as of the date of the merger agreement.

If the merger is completed, an aggregate of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock will be issued to Synergetics shareholders. Current Valley Forge shareholders will own, in the aggregate, approximately 34% of the fully diluted shares of common stock of the combined company immediately after the merger, and the current Synergetics shareholders will own, in the aggregate, approximately 66% of the fully diluted shares of common stock of the combined company immediately 66% of the fully diluted shares of common stock of the combined company immediately after the merger. Synergetics contribution to the combined company s earnings as a percentage of total pro forma earnings giving effect to the merger will be substantially greater than the aggregate percentage interest of the Synergetics shareholders in the combined company s outstanding shares following the merger. The long-term effect of this dilution to Synergetics shareholders following completion of the merger will be able to increase earnings beyond the level of the combined historical earnings of Valley Forge and Synergetics.

The number of shares of Valley Forge common stock to be received by Synergetics shareholders in the merger is fixed and will not be adjusted in the event of any change in stock price.

Upon completion of the merger, the outstanding shares of Synergetics common stock will be converted into the right to receive an aggregate of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock. The market value of Valley Forge common stock has varied since Valley Forge and Synergetics entered into the merger agreement and will continue to vary in the future due to changes in the business, operations or prospects of Valley Forge and Synergetics, market assessments of the merger, market and economic considerations and other factors. There will be no adjustment to the number of shares of Valley Forge common stock to be issued to Synergetics shareholders to reflect changes in the market price of Valley Forge common stock, changes in the operations of Valley Forge or Synergetics following the execution of the merger agreement or any other changes, except for any adjustment that may be necessary to reflect the effect of any stock split or other recapitalization of Valley Forge common stock or Synergetics common stock. The dollar value of Valley Forge common stock that Synergetics shareholders will receive upon completion of the merger will depend on the market value of Valley Forge common stock at the time of completion of the merger, which may be different from, and lower than, the closing price of Valley Forge common stock as of the date of this joint proxy statement/ prospectus.

The issuance of shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders in the merger will substantially reduce the percentage interests of Valley Forge shareholders.

If the merger is completed, an aggregate of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock will be issued to Synergetics shareholders and, upon exercise of assumed options, up to 172,267 shares will be issued to holders of assumed options. Based on the number of shares of Valley Forge common stock

outstanding as of the date of the merger agreement, Synergetics shareholders will own, in the aggregate, approximately 66% of the fully diluted shares of Valley Forge common stock immediately after the merger. The issuance of approximately up to 16,146,180 shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders and holders of assumed options will cause a significant reduction in the relative percentage interest of current Valley Forge shareholders in the total outstanding shares of Valley Forge common stock. Consequently, current Valley Forge shareholders may be able to exercise less influence over the management and policies of the combined company than they presently exercise over the management and policies of Valley Forge.

Before the closing of the merger, Valley Forge will be required to submit an initial listing application to Nasdaq and meet, on a post-merger basis, all initial inclusion criteria on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market.

Valley Forge s common stock is currently traded on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market. Nasdaq has advised Valley Forge that it considers the proposed merger with Synergetics to be a Reverse Merger under Nasdaq s Marketplace Rules. Based on this conclusion, Nasdaq has advised Valley Forge that before the closing of the merger Valley Forge will be required to submit an initial listing application to Nasdaq and after the merger it will be required to meet all initial inclusion criteria on The Nasdaq SmallCap Market. Nasdaq has advised Valley Forge s common stock from The Nasdaq SmallCap Market. The criteria for initial inclusion of the post-merger Valley Forge common stock includes, among other things:

a closing bid price of at least \$4.00 per share;

Valley Forge s satisfaction after the merger of either \$5 million stockholders equity, \$50 million market value of listed securities, or \$750,000 net income from continuing operations; and

satisfaction of all independent director and committee requirements.

Valley Forge expects to be able to meet the criteria for initial inclusion, but cannot guarantee that it will be able to do so. If Valley Forge does not satisfy these initial listing criteria, then Valley Forge s common stock will be delisted from The Nasdaq SmallCap Market, which would result in less liquidity for the New Synergetics shareholders following the merger and could negatively impact investors perceptions of New Synergetics in the financial markets.

If Valley Forge and Synergetics are not successful in integrating their organizations, the anticipated benefits of the transaction may not be realized.

If Valley Forge, Synergetics and the shareholders of the combined company are to realize the anticipated benefits of the transaction, the operations of Valley Forge and Synergetics must be integrated efficiently. The combination of two independent companies is a complex, costly and time-consuming process. This process may disrupt the business of either or both of the companies and may not result in all of the benefits expected by Valley Forge or Synergetics. Neither can assure you that the integration of operations and management will be successful or that the anticipated benefits of the merger will be fully realized. Further, Valley Forge cannot guarantee that the Synergetics shareholders will achieve greater value through their ownership of Valley Forge common stock than they would have achieved as shareholders of Synergetics as a separate entity.

The difficulties of combining the operations of the companies include, among others:

developing a strategic vision for New Synergetics, communicating it to the market and executing on this strategic vision;

rapidly and successfully integrating Valley Forge s products into the existing Synergetics distribution channels while simultaneously launching the new generation Valley Forge multifunctional bipolar electrosurgical generator;

coordinating and harmonizing research and development activities to accelerate introduction of new products and technologies, and to react more quickly to market conditions, all at a reduced cost;

preserving customer, distribution, reseller, manufacturing, supplier, marketing and other important relationships of both Valley Forge and Synergetics and resolving any potential conflicts that may arise;

coordinating sales and marketing functions, particularly in the neurosurgery market;

retaining and attracting key employees;

managing the diversion of management s attention from ongoing business concerns;

consolidating operations, including rationalizing corporate information technology and administrative infrastructures; and

coordinating geographically separate organizations.

As a result of these integration efforts, New Synergetics may incur substantial costs, and its revenues and the value of its common stock may decrease.

If the proposed merger is not completed, Valley Forge and Synergetics will have incurred substantial costs that may adversely affect Valley Forge s and Synergetics financial results and operations and the value of Valley Forge s common stock.

Valley Forge and Synergetics have incurred and will incur substantial costs in connection with the proposed merger. These costs are primarily associated with the fees of attorneys, accountants, printers and Valley Forge s financial advisor. In addition, Valley Forge and Synergetics have each diverted significant management resources in an effort to complete the merger and are each subject to restrictions contained in the merger agreement on the conduct of their businesses. If the merger is not completed, Valley Forge and Synergetics will have received little or no benefit to offset these substantial costs. Also, if the merger is not completed under certain circumstances specified in the merger agreement, Valley Forge or Synergetics may be required to pay the other a break-up fee of \$1,000,000.

In addition, if the merger is not completed, Valley Forge and Synergetics may experience negative reactions from the financial markets and Valley Forge s and Synergetics collaborative partners, customers and employees. Each of these factors may adversely affect the trading price of Valley Forge common stock and Valley Forge s and Synergetics financial results and operations.

Provisions of the merger agreement may deter alternative business combinations and could negatively impact the stock prices of Valley Forge and Synergetics if the merger agreement is terminated under certain circumstances.

Restrictions in the merger agreement on solicitation generally prohibit Valley Forge and Synergetics from soliciting any acquisition proposal or offer for a merger or business combination with any other party, including a proposal that might be advantageous to the shareholders of Valley Forge or Synergetics when compared to the terms and conditions of the merger described in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus. In addition, if the merger is not completed under certain circumstances specified in the merger agreement, Valley Forge or Synergetics may be required to pay the other a break-up fee of \$1,000,000. These provisions may deter third parties from proposing or pursuing alternative business combinations that might result in greater value to Valley Forge or Synergetics shareholders than the merger.

Certain directors and executive officers of Valley Forge and Synergetics have interests in the merger that may be different from, or in addition to, the interests of Valley Forge and Synergetics shareholders.

When considering their respective boards of directors recommendation that Synergetics shareholders vote in favor of the proposal to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement, or Valley Forge shareholders vote in favor of the proposal to issue shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders as contemplated by the merger agreement and in favor of the other related Valley Forge proposals, such shareholders should be aware that some directors and executive officers of Valley Forge and Synergetics have interests in the merger that may be different from,

or in addition to, the interests of Synergetics shareholders. These interests include the appointment of Synergetics current Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer to the Valley Forge board of directors following completion of the merger and the right to continued indemnification and insurance coverage by Valley Forge for acts or omissions occurring before the merger. In addition, such executive officers and the current Chief Executive Officer of Valley Forge will enter into three-year employment agreements with New Synergetics that will provide for, among other things, severance payments to be paid to such executive officers if they are terminated without cause by New Synergetics or if they resign for good reason. Finally, Dr. Leonard Malis, a current member of Valley Forge s board of directors, will receive \$4,157,504 over a period of approximately six years upon Valley Forge s exercise of its right to purchase the Malis® trademark, which is a condition to the completion of the merger. As a result of these interests, these directors and officers could be more likely to vote to approve and adopt the merger agreement and the merger contemplated by the merger agreement and the related proposals included in this joint proxy statement/ prospectus than if they did not hold these interests and may have reasons for doing so that are not the same as the interests of other Valley Forge and Synergetics shareholders.

Risks Relating to the Business of the Combined Company

Valley Forge currently relies on its relationship with a single customer for a significant portion of its revenues, which makes Valley Forge s financial position and operating results and the results of New Synergetics following the merger vulnerable to the loss of that customer.

Valley Forge s most important relationship is with Codman & Shurtleff, Inc., an affiliate of Johnson & Johnson, for the sale of its neurosurgery products. Sales to Codman accounted for 68% of its sales for the first six months of fiscal 2005, 86% of its sales in fiscal year 2004, and 95% and 90% of its sales in fiscal years 2003 and 2002, respectively. Under Valley Forge s agreement with Codman, its exclusive distributorship relationship expired on July 15, 2005. In addition, the agreement will expire on December 31, 2005, or earlier, pursuant to the terms of the agreement.

The impact to Valley Forge of the expiration of its exclusive relationship with Codman, and the corresponding termination of Codman s minimum purchase obligations under the agreement, is uncertain. If Valley Forge is unable to establish alternative or additional channels of distribution for its products, it may be unable to achieve the same revenue levels as those that have historically resulted from Valley Forge s relationship with Codman. In addition, any continuation of the distribution agreement with Codman beyond December 31, 2005 could be on terms less favorable to New Synergetics than the existing distribution agreement with Codman.

If any of our single source suppliers were to cease providing components, we may not be able to produce our products.

Synergetics relies on a single source for the supply of the ultrasonic aspirator sold in the United States and Canada under the Synergetics Omni® brand. Net sales of Synergetics Omni® ultrasonic aspirator for each of Synergetics fiscal year ended July 31, 2004 and the nine-month period ended April 29, 2005 amounted to greater than 10% of total net sales for such periods. Also, the manufacture of Synergetics PHOTON[®] xenon light source depends on single sources for several key components. In addition, Valley Forge currently subcontracts for the manufacturing of its disposable cord and tubing sets with a single manufacturer. If any of these suppliers become unwilling or unable to provide products or components in the required volumes and quality levels or in a timely manner, we would be required to locate and contract with substitute suppliers. Although we believe that alternative sources for many of these components and raw materials are available, we could have difficulty identifying a substitute supplier in a timely manner or on commercially reasonable terms and may have to pay higher prices to obtain the necessary materials. Any supply interruption could harm our ability to manufacture our products until a new source of supply is identified and qualified.

Valley Forge has also become aware that the manufacturers of several parts used in our currently available bipolar electrosurgical generator models will no longer be manufacturing these parts in the near

30

future. While we have arranged to purchase and maintain a significant inventory of these parts and are developing alternatives for these parts, our efforts may not be sufficient depending on our unit sales. Alternative parts, if available, would require engineering redesign and may require regulatory approval before the manufacture of additional new units. In addition, in the event that we determine to continue the manufacture and sale of the existing product line together with our new multifunctional bipolar electrosurgical generator, such redesign, part sourcing and regulatory approval may also be required.

The medical device industry is highly competitive, and we may be unable to compete effectively with other companies.

The medical technology industry is characterized by intense competition. We compete with established medical technology companies and early stage companies that have alternative solutions for the markets we serve or intend to serve. Many of our competitors have access to greater financial, technical, research and development, marketing, manufacturing, sales, distribution services and other resources than we do. Further, our competitors may be more effective at implementing their technologies to develop commercial products. Certain of the medical indications that can be treated by our devices can also be treated by other medical devices or by medical practices that do not include a device. The medical community widely accepts many alternative treatments and certain of these other treatments have a long history of use.

Our competitive position will depend on our ability to achieve market acceptance for our products, develop new products, implement production and marketing plans, secure regulatory approval for products under development, and protect our intellectual property. We may need to develop new applications for our products to remain competitive. Technological advances by one or more of our current or future competitors could render our present or future products obsolete or uneconomical. Our future success will depend upon our ability to compete effectively against current technology as well as to respond effectively to technological advances and upon our ability to successfully implement our joint marketing strategies and execute our research and development plan.

Our future results are dependent, in part, upon the successful introduction of our new multifunctional bipolar electrosurgical generator.

Our future success, in a large part, may depend upon the successful launch of Valley Forge s new multifunctional bipolar electrosurgical generator and new proprietary single-use, hand-switching bipolar instruments. While we believe that this new generator and related instruments represent significant advancements in technology and performance and will replace other surgical tools in certain applications, such as monopolar electrosurgical systems and lasers, their success in the marketplace is dependent upon several factors including:

the completion of the design and testing;

their acceptance by surgeons;

the recognition by hospitals and surgical centers that the new generator and instruments are sufficiently improved and beneficial to warrant the cost of acquisition and training;

our ability to create a sales network;

our ability to sustain our average selling price through this network; and

the reaction of our competitors in this market.

Our products may not be accepted in the market.

We cannot be certain that our current products or any other products that we have or may develop or market will achieve or maintain market acceptance. We cannot be certain that our devices and procedures they perform will be able to replace those established treatments or that either physicians or the medical community in general will accept and utilize our devices or any other medical products that we may

Edgar Filing: VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP - Form S-4/A

Table of Contents

develop. For example, we cannot be certain that the medical community will accept our new multifunctional electrosurgical generator and proprietary hand-switching bipolar electrosurgical instruments over traditional monopolar electrosurgical generators and instruments.

Market acceptance of our products depends on many factors, including our ability to:

convince third-party distributors and customers that our technology is an attractive alternative to other technologies;

manufacture products in sufficient quantities and at acceptable costs; and

supply and service sufficient quantities of our products directly or through distribution alliances. If we do not introduce new commercially successful products in a timely manner, our products may become obsolete over time, thereby decreasing our revenue and profitability.

Demand for our products may change because of evolving customer needs, the introduction of new products and technologies, the discovery of cures for certain medical problems, evolving surgical practices and evolving industry standards. Without the timely introduction of new commercially successful products and enhancements, our products may become obsolete over time, causing our sales and operating results to suffer. The success of our new products will depend on several factors, including our ability to:

properly identify and anticipate customer needs;

commercialize new products in a cost-effective and timely manner;

manufacture and deliver products in sufficient volumes on time;

obtain regulatory approval for new products;

differentiate our products from those of competitors;

achieve positive clinical outcomes;

satisfy the increased demands by health care payors, providers and patients for lower-cost procedures and shorter hospital stays and recovery times;

innovate and develop new materials, product designs and surgical techniques; and

provide adequate medical and/or customer education relating to new products and attract key surgeons to advocate these new products.

New products and enhancements usually require a substantial investment in research and development before we can determine the viability of the product, and we may not have the financial resources necessary to fund this research and development. Moreover, new products and enhancements may not produce revenues in excess of the research and development costs, and they may be quickly obsolete by changing customer preferences or the introduction by our competitors of new technologies or features.

Our operating results may fluctuate.

Our operating results have fluctuated in the past and can be expected to fluctuate from time-to-time in the future. Some of the factors that may cause these fluctuations include, but are not limited to:

the introduction of new product lines;

product modifications;

Edgar Filing: VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP - Form S-4/A

the level of market acceptance of our products;

the timing of research and development expenditures;

timing of the receipt of orders from, and product shipments to, distributors and customers;

timing of expenditures;

changes in the distribution arrangements for our products;

manufacturing or supply delays;

the time needed to educate and train additional sales personnel;

costs associated with product introduction;

product returns; and

receipt of necessary regulatory approvals.

Changes in the health care industry may require us to decrease the selling price for our products or could result in a reduction in the size of the market for our products, each of which could have a negative impact on our financial performance.

Trends toward managed care, health care cost containment, and other changes in government and private sector initiatives in the United States and other countries in which we do business are placing increased emphasis on the delivery of more cost-effective medical therapies that could adversely affect the sale or the prices of our products. For example:

there has been a consolidation among health care facilities and purchasers of medical devices in the United States who prefer to limit the number of suppliers from whom they purchase medical products, and these entities may decide to stop purchasing our products or demand discounts on our prices;

major third-party payors of hospital services, including Medicare, Medicaid and private health care insurers, have substantially revised their payment methodologies, which has resulted in stricter standards for reimbursement of hospital charges for certain medical procedures;

Medicare, Medicaid and private health care insurer cutbacks could create downward price pressure on our products;

numerous legislative proposals have been considered that would result in major reforms in the United States health care system that could have an adverse effect on our business;

there is economic pressure to contain health care costs in international markets; and

there have been initiatives by third-party payors to challenge the prices charged for medical products that could affect our ability to sell products on a competitive basis.

Both the pressures to reduce prices for our products in response to these trends and the decrease in the size of the market as a result of these trends could adversely affect our levels of revenues and profitability of sales.

We will first need to obtain regulatory approval to market our products under development. We may be subject to penalties and may be precluded from marketing our products if we fail to comply with extensive governmental regulations.

Our research and development activities and the manufacturing, labeling, distribution and marketing of our existing and future products are subject to regulation by numerous governmental agencies in the United States and in other countries. The FDA and comparable agencies in other countries impose mandatory procedures and standards for the conduct of clinical trials and the production and marketing of products for diagnostic and human therapeutic use.

Products we have under development are subject to FDA approval or clearance before marketing for commercial use. The process of obtaining necessary FDA approvals or clearances can take years and is expensive and full of uncertainties. Our inability to obtain required regulatory approval or clearance on a timely or acceptable basis could harm our business. Further, approval or clearance may place substantial restrictions on the indications for which the

product may be marketed or to whom it may be marketed.

Further studies may be required to gain approval or clearance for the use of a product for clinical indications other than those for which the product was initially approved or cleared or for significant changes to the product.

Furthermore, another risk of application to the FDA relates to the regulatory classification of new products or proposed new uses for existing products. In the filing of each application, we are required to make a judgment about the appropriate form and content of the application. If the FDA disagrees with our judgment in any particular case and, for example, requires us to file a Premarket Approval Application (PMA) rather than allowing us to market for approved uses while we seek broader approvals or requires extensive additional clinical data, the time and expense required to obtain the required approval might be significantly increased or approval might not be granted. Approved and cleared products are subject to continuing FDA requirements relating to quality control and quality assurance, maintenance of records, reporting of adverse events and product recalls, documentation, and labeling and promotion of medical devices.

The FDA as well as foreign regulatory authorities require that our products be manufactured according to rigorous standards. These regulatory requirements may significantly increase our production costs and may even prevent us from making our products in amounts sufficient to meet market demand. If we change our approved manufacturing process, the FDA may need to review the process before it may be used. Failure to develop our manufacturing capability may mean that even if we develop promising new products, we may not be able to produce them profitably, as a result of delays and additional capital investment costs. In addition, failure to comply with applicable regulatory requirements could subject us to enforcement action, including product seizures, recalls, withdrawal of clearances or approvals, restrictions on or injunctions against marketing our product or products based on our technology, and civil and criminal penalties.

We may not achieve our intended benefits from our significant investment in the Malis® trademark.

Valley Forge holds an option to acquire the Malis® trademark at any time over a period of five years. The Malis® trademark is a name widely recognized and respected in the neurosurgery field. Valley Forge will exercise this option before the closing of the merger. When Valley Forge exercises the option, Dr. Malis will be paid an aggregate of \$4,157,504 over a period of approximately six years. We plan to deploy our sales team and existing distribution network for the introduction of an expected Malis® branded product line. It is possible that we will not be successful in effectively promoting the Malis® brand or in optimizing sales of our neurosurgical product line. The content of the promotional messages for the Malis® product platform may not sufficiently convey the merits of the products and may not be successful in convincing surgeons and hospitals to purchase Malis® products instead of products manufactured by our competitors. If any of these situations occur, Valley Forge may not be able to realize the full value of its investment in the Malis® trademark.

Our intellectual property rights may not provide meaningful commercial protection for our products and could adversely affect our ability to compete in the market.

Our ability to compete effectively depends, in part, on our ability to maintain the proprietary nature of our technologies and manufacturing processes, which includes the ability to obtain, protect and enforce patents on our technology and to protect our trade secrets. We own patents that cover significant aspects of our products. Certain of our patents have expired and others will expire in the future. In addition, challenges may be made to our patents and, as a result, our patents could be narrowed, invalidated or rendered unenforceable. Competitors may develop products similar to ours that our patents do not cover. In addition, our current and future patent applications may not result in the issuance of patents in the United States or foreign countries. Further, there is a substantial backlog of patent applications at the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, and the approval or rejection of patent applications may take several years. We may become subject to patent infringement claims or litigation or interference proceedings declared by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office to determine the priority of invention.

34

Our competitive position depends, in part, upon unpatented trade secrets, which are difficult to protect. Others may independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information and techniques or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets. In an effort to protect our trade secrets, we generally require certain of our employees, consultants and advisors to execute proprietary information and invention assignment agreements upon commencement of employment or consulting relationships with us. These agreements typically provide that, except in specified circumstances, all confidential information developed or made known to the individual during the course of his or her relationship with us must be kept confidential. Some jurisdictions limit the enforceability and scope of these agreements and these agreements may not provide meaningful protection for our trade secrets or other proprietary information in the event of the unauthorized use or disclosure of confidential information.

Managing the expansion or move into our new facilities may affect our ability to meet product delivery requirements.

In January 2005, Synergetics commenced construction of a 27,000 square foot addition to its principal manufacturing facility and headquarters building in O Fallon, Missouri. Substantial completion of the addition is projected for September 2005, with occupancy expected in the calendar fourth quarter of 2005. In addition, Valley Forge recently moved its entire operations to a new facility consisting of approximately 13,500 square feet of assembly, engineering, manufacturing and office space in King of Prussia, Pennsylvania. Moving and expanding our operations into these new facilities may result in a significant disruption in our assembly, manufacturing, inventory, shipping, engineering and research and development abilities and further result in erosion of our anticipated revenues and earnings. Many matters could affect the move or expansion, including the time required to ready our new facilities, the time required to plan and execute the move or expansion, our ability to quickly resume operations in the new facility and the additional burden on our management team to plan and complete this relocation or expansion.

We may have product liability claims, and our insurance may not cover all claims.

Our products involve a risk of product liability claims. We may not be able to obtain insurance for the potential liability on acceptable terms with adequate coverage or at reasonable costs. Any potential product liability claims could exceed the amount of our insurance coverage or may be excluded from coverage under the terms of the policy. Further, our insurance may not be renewed at a cost and level of coverage comparable to that then in effect.

The loss of key personnel could harm our business.

We believe our success depends on the contributions of a number of our key personnel, including Messrs. Scheller, Gampp and Malis, our future Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Scientific Officer, respectively. If we lose the services of key personnel, those losses could materially harm our business. We maintain key person life insurance on Messrs. Scheller and Gampp, but do not have significant key person life insurance on Mr. Malis.

If we are unable to hire, train and retain additional sales, marketing, operations, engineering and finance personnel, our growth may be impaired.

To grow our business successfully and maintain a high level of quality, we will need to recruit, retain and motivate additional highly-skilled sales, marketing, engineering and finance personnel. If we are not able to hire, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees, our growth may be impaired. In particular, we will need to expand our sales and marketing organizations in order to increase market awareness of our products and to increase revenues. In addition, as a company focused on the development of complex products, we will need to hire additional engineering staff of various experience levels in order to meet our product development roadmap. Competition for skilled employees is intense.

We plan to expand our international sales and distribution operations, and the success of our international expansion is subject to significant uncertainties.

We believe that we must expand our international sales and distribution operations to have continued growth. We expect to sell an increasing portion of our products to customers overseas. In attempting to conduct and expand business internationally, we are exposed to various risks that could adversely affect our international operations and, consequently, our operating results, including:

difficulties and costs of staffing and managing international operations;

fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, including imposition of currency exchange controls;

longer accounts receivable collection cycles;

import or export licensing requirements;

potentially adverse tax consequences;

political and economic instability;

obtaining regulatory approval for our products;

potentially reduced protection for intellectual property rights; and

subjectivity to foreign laws.

In addition, because we have suppliers that are located outside of the United States, we are subject to risks generally associated with contracting with foreign suppliers and may experience problems in the timeliness and the adequacy or quality of product deliveries.

The market price of our stock may be highly volatile.

The market price of New Synergetics common stock could fluctuate substantially due to a variety of factors, including:

our ability to successfully commercialize our products;

the execution of new agreements and material changes in our relationships with companies with whom we contract;

quarterly fluctuations in results of operations;

announcements regarding technological innovations or new commercial products by us or our competitors or the results of regulatory approval filings;

market reaction to trends in sales, marketing and research and development and reaction to acquisitions, including the merger;

sales of common stock by existing shareholders;

economic and political condition; and

Edgar Filing: VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP - Form S-4/A

fluctuations in the United States financial markets.

Historically, the trading volume for Valley Forge common stock has been limited.

Valley Forge s common stock is thinly traded in comparison to companies with greater market capitalization. As a result, large sell trades, negative news and general economic pressures on the stock market can have an impact on the price of our common stock that is more pronounced than securities of other issuers with larger listed stock volume or higher prices per share. If shareholders seek to sell their shares in a thinly traded stock, it may be difficult to obtain the price desired. A large percentage of the outstanding shares of common stock of New Synergetics will be held by management and insiders upon

36

completion of the merger, so the float is limited and the stock is much less liquid than larger market cap companies. For a period of 12 months following the closing of the merger, certain of our directors, officers and principal shareholders will not be permitted to sell any shares of New Synergetics common stock pursuant to the terms of the shareholders agreement. Following the expiration of this 12-month period, such insiders will be free to sell their shares, subject to such limitations as are applicable under the federal securities laws and corporate policies. Accordingly, the potential for such large blocks of shares to come to market, and the actual coming to market of these shares, could adversely affect the trading price of the common stock of New Synergetics.

New Synergetics will have anti-takeover defenses that could delay or prevent an acquisition and could adversely affect the price of its common stock.

Provisions of the Valley Forge articles of incorporation, bylaws and Pennsylvania law may have the effect of deterring hostile takeovers or delaying or preventing changes in control of Valley Forge s management, including transactions in which Valley Forge s shareholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then current market prices. In addition, these provisions may limit the ability of the Valley Forge shareholders to approve transactions that they may deem to be in their best interest. Also, if the Valley Forge shareholders approve the proposal to amend and restate the articles of incorporation of Valley Forge, the Valley Forge board of directors will be divided into three classes, as nearly equal in size as practicable, with three-year staggered terms. This provision may deter a potential acquirer from engaging in a transaction with Valley Forge because it will be unable to gain control of the Valley Forge board of directors through at least two meetings in which directors are elected by Valley Forge shareholders.

If the reincorporation merger occurs, New Synergetics certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law will provide for substantially the same anti-takeover defenses as those for Valley Forge. In addition, certain provisions of the New Synergetics Delaware certificate of incorporation and bylaws will limit the manner by which shareholders may call a special meeting and require an affirmative vote of two-thirds of the shareholders entitled to vote to remove a director, amend the bylaws or amend certain specified provisions of the certificate of incorporation.

Compliance with rules and regulations concerning corporate governance may be costly and time consuming.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires, among other things, that public companies adopt and maintain corporate governance measures and imposes comprehensive reporting and disclosure requirements, establishes stringent independence and financial expertise standards for boards of directors and audit committee members and contains increased civil and criminal penalties for companies, their chief executive officers and chief financial officers for securities laws violations. Moreover, public companies are required to maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting and disclose material weaknesses in such controls. Furthermore, The Nasdaq SmallCap Market, on which New Synergetics common stock will be traded pending approval of its listing application, has adopted additional rules and regulations relating to corporate governance.

Because Synergetics, as it currently exists, is a private company, it is unfamiliar with the magnitude and cost of complying with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and The Nasdaq SmallCap Market. Furthermore, certain of those directors and executive officers who will serve as directors and executive officers of New Synergetics do not have experience in managing a public company subject to these regulations. To help address this risk, Synergetics has hired Pamela G. Boone, who has public company experience, to serve as its Chief Financial Officer. Ms. Boone will serve as New Synergetics Chief Financial Officer following the merger. The scope, complexity and cost of New Synergetics corporate governance, reporting and disclosure practices, coupled with members of management new to the public company arena, could impact New Synergetics results of operations and divert management s attention from business operations. These rules and regulations may also make it more difficult and expensive for New Synergetics to obtain directors and officers liability insurance and attract and retain qualified members of the New Synergetics board of directors, especially those willing to serve on New Synergetics audit committee.

Edgar Filing: VALLEY FORGE SCIENTIFIC CORP - Form S-4/A

Table of Contents

THE VALLEY FORGE ANNUAL MEETING

Valley Forge is sending this joint proxy statement/ prospectus to the shareholders of Valley Forge to provide important information in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Valley Forge board of directors for use at the 2005 annual meeting of Valley Forge shareholders and at any adjournment or postponement of the meeting. This joint proxy statement/ prospectus is being mailed to Valley Forge shareholders on or about [], 2005. **Date, Time and Place of the Valley Forge Annual Meeting**

The annual meeting will be held at 9:30 a.m., Eastern Time, on Monday, September 19, 2005, at []. **Purpose of the Annual Meeting**

At the meeting, Valley Forge shareholders will be asked to consider and vote upon the following:

1. A proposal to approve the issuance of 15,973,912 shares of Valley Forge common stock to Synergetics shareholders in connection with the merger of Synergetics with Synergetics Acquisition Corporation, a Delaware corporation and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge (MergerSub), pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 2, 2005, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 2, 2005, and as further amended by Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement and Plan of Merger dated July 15, 2005, by and among Valley Forge, MergerSub and Synergetics;

2. A proposal to amend and restate the articles of incorporation of Valley Forge to:

(i) increase the number of authorized shares of Valley Forge common stock from 20,000,000 shares to 50,000,000 shares;

(ii) increase the number of directors on the Valley Forge board of directors to seven; and

(iii) divide the Valley Forge board of directors into three classes, as nearly equal in size as practicable, with three-year staggered terms;

3. A proposal to approve the reincorporation of Valley Forge under the laws of the State of Delaware through a merger of Valley Forge with VFSC Delaware, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Valley Forge;

4. A proposal to elect seven director nominees to the Valley Forge board of directors to serve until their respective successors are elected and qualified, or until the earlier of their death, resignation or removal;

5. A proposal to amend the Valley Forge stock plan to increase the number of shares issuable upon the exercise of options granted under the Valley Forge stock plan from 345,000 shares to 1,345,000 shares;